
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Thursday, 20th February, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3  Minutes 4 - 7

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held, Thursday, 
28 November 2019

4  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5  Homelessness and Housing Allocations Business Transformation 
Project 

8 - 40

Head of Strategic Housing Service to report/present

Public Document Pack



6  Response to Climate Emergency Motion 41 - 76

To consider the response to the Climate Emergency Motion.

7  Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance 
Update 

77 - 90

To consider third quarter (2019/2020) performance in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate

8  Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance 
Update 

91 - 114

To consider third quarter (2019/2020) performance in the Economy 
Directorate

9  Work Programme 2019/2020 115 - 117

To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/2020

10  Exclusion of Public and Press 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information. 

11  Rochdale Market 118 - 120

Director of Economy to report

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members
Councillor Tom Besford Councillor Jacqueline Beswick
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Williams
Councillor Peter Winkler Councillor Sameena Zaheer



For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XY

Telephone: 01706 924715
E-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 28 November 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Meredith (in the Chair); Councillors Besford, Kelly, 
Angela Smith and Zaheer.

OFFICERS: J. Rooney (Assistant Director - Information Customers and 
Communities), M. Robinson (Assistant Director – Economy Directorate), 
M. Dalzell, C. Highton (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson 
(Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Superintendent R. Hunt (Greater Manchester 
Police), D. Grice (Deputy Chief Executive – Link4Life) and 
D. Cooke (Operations Director – Rochdale Development Agency).

22 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beswick, Susan 
Emmott, West and Peter Williams.

23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Kelly and Councillor 
Zaheer both declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 (Dippy on Tour).

24 MINUTES
The Committee considered the Minutes of the last meeting held 18th 
September 2019. 

The Chair referred to recent events relating to Rochdale Market and 
requested that these events, including the decision (since rescinded) to close 
the Market, and the reasons for this decision be investigated by the Council’s 
Internal Audit team.

The Chair also requested that a report, relating to the Rochdale Riverside 
Project be submitted to the Committee’s next scheduled, on 20th February 
2020.

Resolved:
1. That the Minutes of the meeting of Communities, Regeneration and 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 18th September 
2019, be approved as a correct record.

2. The issue of Rochdale Market be referred to the Councils Internal Audit 
Team for investigation.

3. The Director of Economy be requested to submit a report, to the 
Committee’s next scheduled meeting, regarding the Rochdale 
Riverside Project.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



25 COMMUNITY SAFETY
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
reviewed the progress and approach to the Council’s community safety 
priorities delivered by the Community Safety Partnership.

The Committee was advised that the Community Safety Plan for the Council 
had been approved by the Council’s Cabinet on 27th August 2019 following a 
Strategic Threat Assessment to determine the local priority areas. The revised 
plan has been informed by information from a residents’ survey in 2018 and a 
strategic threat assessment that included qualitative and quantitative data to 
assess the scale, trend, intelligence assessment and knowledge of themes.

The themes included:
 Residential Burglary
 Serious Violent Crime
 Child Sexual Exploitation
 Youth related anti-social behaviour
 Modern Slavery
 Domestic Abuse
 Organised Crime
 Substance Abuse – including drugs and new psychoactive 

substances
 Night time economy and issues in our town centres
 Community tensions
 Sexual offences
 Cyber Enable Fraud

The Chair had requested information relating to domestic violence in the 
Borough. Details of the measures being undertaken to counter the high levels 
of domestic violence that were reported across the borough were contained in 
the current delivery plan presented in Appendix 1 of the submitted report. A 
new domestic abuse steering group, with appropriate terms of reference, has 
been established to drive forward progress on a range of strategic issue 
relating to domestic abuse and its impact upon families and communities.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

26 HOMELESSNESS AND HOUSING ALLOCATIONS BUSINESS 
TRANSFORMATION PROJECT
Resolved:
That consideration of the Homelessness and Housing Allocations Business 
Transformation Project be deferred for consideration at the Committee’s next 
scheduled meeting on 20th February 2020.

Page 5



27 DIPPY ON TOUR
The Committee received a presentation, from the Assistant Director 
(Information Customers and Communities) and Link4Life’s Deputy Chief 
Executive that updated Members on preparations for the visit of ‘Dippy the 
Dinosaur’.

As part of a nationwide tour that takes in all parts of the United Kingdom, 
Dippy is due to visit Rochdale from February to June 2020, where he will 
reside in Number One Riverside.  

It was noted that at previous stops on his tour, where information was 
available, Dippy had attracted 153,000 visitors in Dorset and 250,000 visitors 
to Birmingham (including 90,000 advanced ticket sales). It was anticipated 
that upwards of 250,000 people will visit Rochdale during the Dinosaur’s stay 
in Rochdale. A number of events and activities were being planned by 
Link4Life and the Council to coincide with the visit with an emphasis on 
community and educational activities, including special packages for SEND 
children.

Resolved: 
1. The presentation be noted and welcomed.
2. The Assistant Director (Information Customers and Communities) be 

requested to attend a future meeting of the Committee, in autumn 
2020, to deliver a report/presentation reviewing Dippy the Dinosaur’s 
time in Rochdale.

28 ECONOMY DIRECTORATE PLANS 2019/2020 - QUARTER 2 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 
30th September 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Economy Directorate Plan 2019/2020.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.

100% (11) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019/2020 were still 
ongoing and were due to be completed by the action due date.   

The Operations Director (Rochdale Development Agency) updated the 
Committee on regeneration projects that were ongoing or in preparation 
across the Borough and of the work of Rochdale Development Agency. He 
updated the Committee on developments and proposals concerning Rochdale 
Market and the Committee agreed that a report regarding the future operating 
intentions of Rochdale Market be presented to the Committee’s next 
scheduled meeting on 20th February 2020.

Resolved:

Page 6



1. The Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September 2019) progress towards 
achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate Plan 
2019/2020 be noted.

2. The Director of Economy be requested to submit a report to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Committee on 20th February 2020, regarding 
the future operating intentions of Rochdale Market.

29 NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLAN 2019-20: QUARTER 2 
PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised the progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 
30th September 2019) towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019/2020.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.

6% (1) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019/2020 were 
complete, 88% (15) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan were still 
ongoing and a further 6% (1) of the actions had passed their due date and 
were not fully complete.

The Committee was updated on the numbers of rejected bins which the 
Council doesn’t collect and which are ‘contaminated’, including details on the 
level of fines that are imposed around contaminated bins or fly tipping? The 
Committee also requested information regarding the monitoring of business 
recycling, including how the Council can get businesses on board with the 
importance of recycling and dealing with waste?

The Chair asked for examples of fly tipping incidents on private land and 
requested that this matter be raised with the Cabinet Member with the 
responsibility for the Environment Portfolio.

Resolved:
1. The Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September 2019) performance report 

detailing progress towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019/2020, be noted.

2. The Head of the Council’s Environmental Management Services be 
requested to respond to Members of the Committee, in writing, 
detailing answers to the various questions that Members raised above.

30 WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020
Resolved:
That the Committee’s Work Programme 2019/2020 be noted.

Page 7



September 2019

Rochdale Borough Council -

A vision beyond housing

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 5



Our clients

P
age 9



About the project 

3

Rochdale Council’s Strategic Housing team has asked 

FutureGov to support them in conducting a discovery 

around the Homelessness & Allocation services. 

Phase 1 - The aim was to uncover pain points for 

residents, services and partner organisation, identify 

opportunities for change and develop a vision for a 

future experience in a collaborative way. 

Organisations

Products &

Technology

ServicesP
age 10



What we did

P
age 11



Our Approach 

5

Qualitative research and data discovery

We’ve worked with council teams/services and providers, to understand 

the challenges and the issues unique to Rochdale Borough and we used data to define 

the scale of the issues. We’ve listened and learnt from residents to identify how services 

impact their lives. 

Exploring and designing collaboratively

With Rochdale Council and providers we’ve built a shared understanding of the ways 

services fail to meet people’s needs. We’ve collaboratively explored ideas for how the 

services could be different for customers, staff and providers and they now need to be 

developed and tested. We’ve collectively crafted a new vision and mission for the future of 

Housing in Rochdale Borough. 

Regular feedback sessions

Together we’ve shared progress and invited staff, related services and partner 

organisations to feed into the work every two weeks. 

P
age 12



5 shadowing sessions 

with Housing Officers and 

Home Choice Officers

Research Activities

6

7 indepth interviews 

with leadership and senior 

officers within the Council 

and staff from housing 

providers

8 indepth interviews with 

residents in temporary 

accommodation and 

applicants on the housing 

register 

P
age 13



Research Activities

7

4 workshops & 2 mapping 

sessions with people from 

Council Services, 3rd sector 

and Registered Providers

11 indepth interviews with 

leadership and key 

departments across Rochdale 

Council (R&B, Adults, 

Childrens)

8 datasets collated and 

reviewed to qualify the 

challenges identified. Data

drawn from providers, 

council and national 

reporting 

P
age 14



Challenges

in Rochdale

P
age 15



9

Rochdale housing services are at a 

tipping point where demand is 

increasing for social housing and 

temporary accommodation. 

This leads to increased temporary 

accommodation costs. 

Challenge

Nights people were in B&Bs:

936 (2016/17) 

3,653 (2018/19)

Shortfall of subsidy 

for B&B costs

£43k (2016/17)

£297k (2018/19)

Source: RBC, B&B info and 

payments 16/17 to 18/19

P
age 16



10

These high costs are rooted in 

people staying too long in 

temporary accommodation. 

People having false hopes that 

they will receive social housing 

and a lack of move on support led 

to this situation. 

Challenge

People on the 

housing register: 

6,086 (2017/2018)

6,818 (2018/19)

Number of applications to 

join the housing register:

150 per week

Number of 

lets during 2018/19:

1450 (Equates to 

approx. 28 per week)

Source: RBC, Housing Register 

Monitoring Report  16/17 to 18/19

P
age 17



11

This increase in demand for 

temporary accommodation is 

being met with B&Bs which has a 

particular negative impact on 

families. 

Rochdale families are in B&Bs in 

much higher proportions than the 

national average.

Challenge

Proportion families in TA:

81% (Rochdale)

74% (England)

Proportion of households 

in TA that are in B&Bs:

28 % (Rochdale) 

8 % (England)

Proportion families in 

TA that are in B&Bs:

22% (Rochdale) 

4 % (England)

Source: MHCLG, Statutory homelessness 

prevention duty outcomes April-Dec 2018

P
age 18



12

The increase in demand for 

Rochdale housing services is being 

matched by an increase in the 

complexity and severity of 

households needs.

Challenge
Households on 

housing register with 

physical disabilities:

63% increase 

115 (16/17)

187 (18/19)

Households on housing 

register overcrowding 

in 2+ bedrooms:

22% increase 

189 (16/17)

231 (18/19)

Applicants in Band A:

42 (End of March 2018)

204 (End of March 2019)

Source: RBC, Housing Register 

Monitoring Report  16/17 to 18/19

P
age 19



13

Temporary Accommodation costs 

are the symptom of a housing 

system that is not helping its 

residents early enough, to support 

them before they are threatened 

with homelessness.

Challenge

% of additional cost that 

B&Bs generate on top of 

the total RBH contract:

~30% (B&B costing £200k 

already this year on top of 

£600k contract)

Source: RBC, B&B info and payments 

16/17 to 18/19, RBH contract value 18/19

P
age 20



14

The number and types of houses 

and tenures available across 

Rochdale Borough do not meet the 

needs of residents on the housing 

register. 

The housing register is not used to 

predict and commission new 

housing to meet this changing 

demand.   

Challenge Number of people in 

Band A of the housing 

register:

42 (2017/18) 

204 (2018/19)

Average number of bids 

per property type via the 

social housing register:

69 - 1 bed flat

192 - 3 bed house

165 - 4 bed house

Number of households on 

the housing register 

requiring property types:

2907 - Studio / 1 bed

1981 - 2 bed

1119 - 3 bed

Source: RBC, Housing Register

Monitoring Report  16/17 to 18/19

P
age 21



Opportunity 

15

A significant step is needed for change
It will take more than adjusting the existing provision to meet statutory 

requirements

This is an opportunity to pioneer a new approach 
Other councils are failing to grasp this opportunity, Rochdale has an 

opportunity to lead 

Exceed expectations of the people of Rochdale Borough
Build a service that anticipates needs and early help is central to provision 

P
age 22



Seeing the 

bigger picture

P
age 23



We need to break the cycle

17

Current pain points:

● The right support is not in place to 

help residents sustain their tenancy

● Services not joined up enough to recognise 

the early signs of people getting into crisis

● No holistic view of a person’s situation 

due to a lack of data and information sharing

● No strengths and asset based approach to help 

people improve their situation

● Residents often have unrealistic expectations 

towards their chances to get social housing

● The time spent in temporary accommodation 

is not used effectively to help residents

● Providers are risk averse towards residents 

with complex needs due to a lack of support

P
age 24



A challenge beyond housing

18

People who access our housing services are 

likely to have touched other council services 

before. The way we currently work in silos 

across the system is ineffective, inefficient and 

doesn’t make the difference we could make in 

people’s lives.

Effects of the current way of working:

● more demand and pressure on all services

● increasing costs and no smart use of budgets

● staff time is exhausted and they are at their 

limit

● resident’s situations escalate too often

● many residents in permanent crisis

P
age 25



Breaking the circle 

19

a

I have 

my own 

place to live

I get 

into crisis

I lose my 

home
I’m waiting 

for a house

I’m getting 

housed

I ask 

(the council)

for help

b

c

If we want to break the cycle of people getting into crisis 

a combined effort across council services and partner 

organisations is required. 

We need to …

Focus our resources to create stable homes

Provide proactive support for residents

Enable residents to access services easily 

a

b

c

P
age 26



Opportunity 1:

Multidisciplinary working across 

all services to respond to people’s 

needs holistically

Opportunity 2:

A true prevention approach across 

services that helps people before 

getting into crisis

Opportunity 3:

Empowering residents to own 

their situation and provide the 

tools to help themselves

Opportunities for improvement and innovation

20

Opportunity 4:

An outcome focused culture 

and way of working across services 

and organisations 

Opportunity 5:

Better use of current housing stock

and predicting future needs to build 

the right homes

Opportunity 6:

Improving access to housing for 

residents to suitable, secure and 

sustainable accommodation 

P
age 27



21

Services Model
A vision for Rochdale Borough

ConnectedP
age 28



Connected Services Model 

22

Locality 

Multidisciplinary 

teams

Insights, 

Innovation & 

Partnerships

Multi-Agency 

Strategy 

Group

Holistic Advice, 

Homelessness 

& Allocations

Service

P
age 29



Benefits of the new model

23

For the council and their partners:

● Better use of staff and budgets across services 

● More flexible ways of working and creative solutions 

● Less demand and pressure on services and organisations

● Partners less risk averse because they have more support

● Better sharing of data and information across services

For residents of Rochdale: 

● Transparent, honest and consistent experience

● Creating interactions that are more meaningful for residents 

● More joined up, holistic and tailored service experience

● Better access to services for people with complex needs

● Being more empowered to manage their own situation

P
age 30



Phase 2:

Prototyping the Connected 

Services Model 

Establishing the Conditions 

for Change 

P
age 31



Possible prototype areas 

25

● Working more collaboratively with Adult Social Care and Children’s Services to identify 

households in need before crisis point

● Developing the Personal Housing Plan

● Training homelessness and housing workers to take a strengths based approach with 

customers

● Collecting and using data smarter to identify people in need 

● Looking at job roles and making sure they are fit for the future 

● Supporting staff to work differently 

P
age 32



Ben Holliday

Chief Design Officer

07875 489431

benholliday@wearefuturegov.com

wearefuturegov.com

Thank you

Emma Cheshire

Project Director

07411 001 629

emmacheshire@wearefuturegov.com

P
age 33



27

supplementary 

slides – insights 

from the research 

interviews  

P
age 34



Homelessness starts before people 

show up at the council. There are often 

early signs of people getting into crisis 

that are missed by organisations. 

“We were living with friends for 2 years. We went to the 

council because I was homeless and pregnant. Went back 

one day and they said we’re moving into hostel.” (F1J)

“I stayed 12 weeks at a friend's home but I didn’t want to fall 

out with him so I moved out. I then also stayed a night in a 

friend’ van.” (S3A)

“I live with my sister for 7 months but I didn’t get along with 

her partner.” (S2B)

P
age 35



Not understanding people’s situations 

earlier leads to a lot of missed chances to 

put the right actions in place that would 

prevent situations from escalating.

“It often seems like crisis after crisis. 

We’re picking up a lot of people at 

crisis point. Probably sometimes 

because of a lack of joint working.”

“It’d make it easier if organisations 

would work more joined up - letting 

us know at the absolute earliest. 

People asking the right questions 

early on. The earlier we know the 

more we can do. We’d have time 

then to call multi agency meetings. 

Look at things in a more holistic way, 

to better meet the customers needs.“

“We need to do more prevention. 

Section 21 is easy, but it’s the ones 

that are more hidden. How do we 

deliver the support for them? We 

must work with Adult Social Care and 

other services to understand the 

trigger points.”

P
age 36



There is no real joined up approach to 

understanding people’s needs and 

finding solutions to their individual 

situation. Every organisation does their 

bit but nobody has the full picture. 

“It feels like two separate departments. They don’t liaise with 

each other is my impression.” (S3A)

“I done my bit now. But the problem is not solved.” (Housing 

Officer)

P
age 37



The current way organisations are set up 

around funding pots and budgets promote 

territorial behaviour and are barriers to truly 

collaborative working that meets people’s 

needs.

“The culture of organisations and 

teams needs to change. It’s old 

fashioned, maybe it was okay in the 

70s and 80s but needs have 

changed.”

“People fight for the funding, instead 

of working collaboratively. We need a 

radical system change.”

“Organisations and departments are 

delivering best they can in the 

parameters that they’re used to.”

P
age 38



There is a risk for some people that the 

stability they found in a hostel breaks 

away when they have their own flat. 

They are in danger of losing the tenancy 

and needing help again. 

“I’ll miss the people that I’ve met here, But I have them on my 

Facebook and message them” (S1L)

“I’ll still come and visit Lauren and Cindy. I like all the staff 

actually. They are nice they have a laugh” (S2B)

P
age 39



It’s not just a Rochdale Borough problem -

similar social challenges in places around 

Rochdale affect the borough because 

people with high needs come here to use it’s 

services. 
“You end up with a concentration of 

people with high needs, they don’t 

succeed with tenancy because of 

drugs, then the neighbour and their 

neighbour after that.”

“People from out of town come to 

Rochdale and into the system.” 

P
age 40



Report to Cabinet 

Date of Meeting 28th January 2020
Portfolio Deputy Leader and 

Portfolio Holder for Health 
and Wellbeing 

Report Author Mark Widdup
Public/Private Document Public

Response to Climate Emergency Motion

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

This report sets out the scale of the challenge we face to meet the Climate 
Emergency Motion declared by this Council. It sets out the work that has 
been done before the Council Motion and since it was declared. It suggests 
what actions and leadership are needed to work towards the ambitions of 
the Council Motion.

To update Members on the Council’s proposed response to the climate 
emergency motion approved by Full Council on 17 July 2019. To ask 
Members to consider the suggested approach being adopted which is 
intended to closely follow the recently approved GM 5 Year Environment 
Plan. Members are also asked to consider the draft terms of reference for a 
Working Group and draft Strategy on Climate Change.  

Recommendation

2. Cabinet is requested to:

I. endorse the approach which uses the GM 5 Year Environment Plan 
as a framework which the Council will follow locally and build actions 
around as set out in paragraph 3.14 of this report;

II. approve the proposed Draft Climate Emergency Strategy, for 
consultation, which is attached as Appendix 3 of the report;

III. approve the membership of the proposed Climate Emergency 
Working Group that was suggested in the Council Motion as detailed 
in paragraph 3.23 of this report. If Members are mindful to approve 
the Working Group then they are asked to approve the draft terms of 
reference detailed in Appendix 1 of the report which will then be 
agreed by the Working Group once formed.

IV. approve the formation of a Climate Change Business Group as 
detailed in paragraph 3.30 of this report.

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



V. note the existing GM and Council projects and  activities which should 
contribute to the 2038 target as set out in Appendix 2 of the report; 

VI. note that a request for an initial capital budget allocation has been 
included in the budget process to support the climate emergency 
agenda as detailed in paragraph 5.1 of this report. 

VII. consider the personnel implications set out in paragraph 7.1 of the 
report and approve the proposal to establish a post of Climate 
Emergency Officer for an initial three year fixed term contract.

VIII. note that the Climate Emergency Working Group once established 
will be tasked to agree the final Climate Change Strategy and 
produce a detailed climate emergency action plan which can form the 
basis of future discussions and decisions at Cabinet.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The recommendations are put forward to enable the motion on the Climate 
Emergency as passed at Council on 17th July 2019 to be progressed.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Council Motion – 17 July 2019

The Council noted that on 8th October 2018, the UN Intergovernmental 
Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) published a report on the impacts of global 
warming of 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels and related global greenhouse 
gas Emissions.

The report warned that the risk of catastrophic climate change including 
extreme heat, drought, flooding and climate-related poverty would 
significantly increase unless global warming could be kept to a maximum of 
1.5°C.

The report authors found that global warming is likely to reach 1.5°C 
between 2030 and 2052 if it continues to increase at the current rate and 
say that urgent and unprecedented action is required to meet the target. 

The Council recognises that the scale of the challenge is unprecedented.         
Approximately 97.5% of emissions within the borough are beyond the 
Council’s direct control, so everyone within the borough has a role to play if 
we are to successfully reduce emissions. 

Tackling climate change can only be a common endeavour and will require 
the Council and its Partners, residents, businesses and other organisations 
to play their part.

Page 42



4.6

4.7

At its meeting on 17 July 2019, Full Council resolved to:

 declare a climate emergency;
 work towards ensuring that the borough is carbon neutral by 2050, in 

line with the Mayor and the Government’s targets. Achieving this will 
require significant investment and policy initiatives from the 
Government, and Council hopes it would be achieved earlier than 
2050;

 work towards ensuring that the Council is carbon neutral by 2038 (*), 
recognising the leadership role it has in the borough;

 develop a working group to support the Council to move from 
declaration to delivery drawing in cross sector expertise, capacity and 
capability.

 The working group should draw on existing expertise within the 
borough as well as including residents who are representative of the 
borough as a whole;

 set in place a process of engagement and collaborative action that 
enables an action plan to be considered by Cabinet and Council in 
early 2020, based on achieving the aforementioned targets.

 (An amendment to the motion was moved, seconded and approved 
which amended the target date for being carbon neutral to 2038)

Greater Manchester Position

A Greater Manchester Green Summit was held in March 2019.  A GM 5 year 
Environment Plan was launched which set out the urgent steps which 
needed to happen to provide GM with the best chance of achieving carbon 
neutral by 2038. 

To achieve the plan’s ambitions requires urgent action from everyone in 
Greater Manchester – from businesses, the public sector, and local 
residents. 

The plan sets out how Greater Manchester’s local authorities and health 
sector will work to reduce our environmental impact (of our buildings, 
vehicle fleets and procurement processes, in particular).

We also need businesses to lead the way, maximising the potential 
economic benefits resulting from the transition to a low-carbon economy. 
This includes 
increasing the efficiency of how businesses heat and power their buildings 
and 
produce goods/services, reducing the environmental impact of how their 
goods and staff travel, and installing renewable energy and heating 
technologies at their premises.

Staff will play a key role in driving these changes within their businesses 
and several organisations have supported this by running carbon literacy 
training for their staff or promoting environmental volunteering.

Page 43



4.8

As residents, we can all take what might seem like small steps but which 
will add up to making a big difference across Greater Manchester. We can 
cycle and walk for short journeys and use public transport for longer ones. 
Where we do need to drive, we can car share or replace a petrol/diesel car 
with an electric one when we come to upgrade. We may also be able to 
install renewable energy generation at our home and upgrade our heating 
system and insulation to reduce the impact of the energy we use.

Our consumption of products that are made outside the city region, such as 
food, clothing and single-use plastics, can also have a significant impact on 
the environment – so we need to think about the products we buy and 
consume.

The above actions won’t be enough, we all need to work together in new 
and 
innovative ways – in how we develop new technologies, how we fund 
and finance investment in deploying what already exists, how different 
sectors work together, how we increase the capacity and capability of 
our workforce and how we educate and change people’s behaviours.

Key Aims of the GM 5 Year Environment Plan

What do we need to do over the next 5 years?
There are six broad themes set out in the Environment Plan as follows; 

Our Energy Supply – the source of power and heat to our buildings and 
transport

 Increasing local renewable electricity generation, de-carbonising how 
we heat our buildings, increasing the diversity and flexibility of our 
supply

Our travel and transport – how we move and how goods are transported

 Increasing use of public transport and active travel routes; 
 phasing out fossil-fuelled private vehicles and replacing them with 

zero emission alternatives; 
 tackle to most polluting vehicles on our roads; 
 establishing a zero emissions bus fleet; 
 de-carbonising freight transport and shifting to rail and water transport

Our homes, workplaces and public buildings – the demand for energy to 
heat the places we live and work

 Reducing the heat demand from existing homes; 
 reducing the heat demand from existing commercial and public 

buildings;
 reducing the heat demand in new buildings.

Page 44



4.9

4.10

4.11

Our consumption and production of resources – how sustainably we 
produce goods and services and what we do with them after we have used 
them

 Producing goods and services more sustainably, moving to a circular 
economy; 

 becoming more responsible consumers; 
 managing our waste as sustainably as possible; 
 reducing unnecessary food waste.

Our natural environment – increasing the wide range of benefits provided 
by our air, land, water and biodiversity

 Managing our land sustainably; 
 managing our water and its environmental sustainability; 
 achieving a net gain in biodiversity for new development; 
 increasing investment into our natural environment; 
 increasing engagement with our natural environment.

Our resilience and adaptation to climate change – how resilient we are to 
climate change and how well we adapt to its impacts

 Embedding climate change resilience and adaptation in all policies;
 increasing the resilience of an investment in our critical infrastructure;
 implementing a priorities programme of nature-based climate 

adaptation action; 
 improving monitoring and reporting.

How will we achieve the target for GM and Rochdale Borough?

Climate emergency cannot be just another service performance goal familiar 
to Council Members and Officers, where control and accountability is clear 
and supported through existing statute or policy. This is a challenge where 
the totality of solutions needed is not clear and the approach we take will be 
emergent.

The Council will need to put in place appropriate governance arrangements 
to ensure accountability which adhere to the Council’s constitution and 
decision making process, however, we anticipate the extent of the 
challenge, potential solutions and community opinion are all things that need 
to inform the evolution of our actions and plans.

The Council cannot provide all the solutions, as combating climate change 
needs system wide change that involves communities, business, individuals 
and stakeholders across all sectors of the economy.  We have an 
opportunity to address this challenge through the development of a longer 
term vision for our Borough whilst ensuring we deliver real change in the 
short and medium term. 

Page 45



4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

The Council is best placed to help facilitate this work through a co-creation 
process. It will require major investments, changes to systems of how we 
use and interact with energy and changes to how we live our lives and 
define success. It will also redefine how we interact with our environment. 
Above all, it will involve collective leadership and shared ambition to deal 
with this challenge head on, and this report sets the framework for how we 
can define and develop future actions.

It is proposed to use the GM 5 Year Environment Plan as the framework on 
which to deliver our actions at a district level.  Given that the GM target can 
only be achieved if all 10 districts are seeking to achieve similar aims it 
would seem appropriate to link in with the above themes.

There are already a number of GM projects in which Rochdale is actively 
involved. For example, in order to tackle the major risk that air pollution 
poses, the 10 local councils in Greater Manchester are developing a Clean 
Air Plan.

Appendix 3 sets out a draft Climate Emergency Strategy. The public facing 
strategy outlines the effects and impacts of climate change, as well as the 
current picture in Rochdale, to demonstrate why the Council has declared a 
climate emergency. It includes the national, regional and local policy 
agenda, and targets for reducing the impact. The strategy has been 
informed by toolkits, data, strategies and frameworks prepared by various 
agencies including Friends of the Earth, Ashden, Tyndall Centre, Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and United Nations. The Council’s goals 
have been framed around the Sustainable Development Goals which are a 
blueprint to achieve social, economic and environmental sustainability. The 
outcomes are also aligned with the GM Environmental Plan, whilst adopting 
a wider focus for climate action to ensure collective responsibility across all 
council services. The draft strategy will continue to be developed through 
consultation and accompanied by a delivery plan to steer the Council’s 
activity on an annual basis, over the next five years. 

Appendix 2 sets out the existing GM and Council projects or activities which 
should contribute to the 2038 target. 

Climate Emergency Working Group

Members are asked to endorse that a Climate Emergency Working Group 
should be established in order both to accelerate action towards the 
Council’s existing sustainability objectives and potentially to set more 
demanding targets. Arrangements for taking forward its recommendations 
would be a matter for further consideration by this Committee.

In a bid to put climate concerns at the heart of council decisions, a Climate    
Emergency Working Group will be established to consider strategies and 
actions that will help achieve our carbon-neutral ambitions. Given the broad 
range of issues within the 6 themes it is suggested that the Working Group 
consist of the following;

Page 46



 Councillors – Cross Party (2 Labour, 1 Con, 1 LD)
 Representative from a new Climate Emergency Business Group (see 

below)
 Member of Youth Parliament
 Action Together (Community and Voluntary Sector Organisations 

Rep)
 Residents (2)
 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RSL representative)
 Director of Neighbourhoods
 Officers to provide support on Policy, Legal, Finance, 

communications etc
 Academic support from University sector

Young people should be a central voice in the group to help shape the future 
with the above stakeholders.  It is proposed to ask the Youth Parliament 
how they wish to be represented on this group.

The Working Group will be supported by a range of Officers as required 
covering areas including communications and marketing, HR, finance and 
legal. External expert advice may need to be sought although we could look 
to GM for support in this regard connected to the 5 Year Environment Plan.

A draft of the suggested terms of reference of this working group is attached 
at Appendix 2 of this report.

It will be important that the Climate Emergency Working Group is 
established with the principles of equality, inclusion and diversity.
  
Rochdale Council will call on central government to provide the powers, 
resources and help with funding to make this possible.

 Climate Emergency Business Group

The Borough has a wealth of knowledge and expertise in the field of Green 
Energy and climate change.  It is therefore proposed to establish a Climate 
Emergency Business Group which can provide technical, professional and 
commercial support to the Council.

A number of potential attendees have been identified and these will be 
confirmed in due course.

Alternatives Considered

Given Rochdale Council has approved a motion to declare a climate 
emergency it is appropriate to consider how the Council, its partners and 
stakeholders will deliver the targets by 2038.

It would seem appropriate to use the GM 5 Year Environment Plan as a 
framework on which to base out local action plans. The alternative would be 
for the Council to establish its own model which in the view of Officers would 
look very similar to the one already approved at a GM level.

Page 47



Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

It is widely accepted that in order to effectively implement a climate 
emergency plan there is a requirement to establish a climate emergency 
budget.  This could be a combination of revenue and capital investment 
which will be clearer once Officers have completed the assessment of what 
activity we are currently undertaking and what new actions may come from 
the Climate Emergency Working Group.  Funding will have to be identified if 
revenue schemes are developed and will be subject to future consideration 
by Members, however the draft capital programme includes a £1M per year 
for the first 5 years to link with the 5 Year Plan this being subject to approval 
at Budget Council in February.

It is further proposed that in order to deliver such a large and ambitious 
programme a dedicated resource will be required.  It is proposed to establish 
a post of ‘Climate Emergency Officer’ for a fixed three year period. The 
investment required will be circa £150k for the three year period. Once the 
capital schemes are identified the post will be charged against the capital 
budget however the post will require some revenue funding whilst the 
schemes are developed. It is proposed that £50k is allocated from budget 
pressures to fund the post for 12 months whilst the capital investment 
schemes are identified and progressed. 

It should be noted that few if any funding sources are currently available to 
local authorities and significant action would be dependent on new funding 
being made available following the government’s decision to increase the 
targets in the Climate Change Act.  For example, the GM Clean Air Plan is 
wholly dependent on Government Funding for its successful implementation.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Legal implications will be assessed and the Working Group will receive 
advice as proposals and actions are developed and delivered.

The climate emergency agenda will link closely to the Council’s new 
corporate plan and as specific actions are proposed these will be linked to 
delivery of our outcomes for the Borough.

A full risk register will be developed to accompany any actions plans.

Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

Any workforce equality issues arising from this report will be identified as 
the proposals progress.

Page 48



Equality/Community Impact Assessments

Community impacts from a new Climate Emergency Action Plan will 
reduce carbon emissions and will reduce fuel bills. The type and extent of 
impacts will depend on the focus of the action plan.

Potential carbon reduction measures are broad and there may be 
community aspirations to deliver measures in sustainable transport, air 
quality, biodiversity enhancement and water management, yet these may 
fall outside of the requirements of the funding source(s) and as such 
expectations may need to be managed.

6.4

Consultation

7. There will be ongoing consultation around the Council’s suggested 
approach to the Climate Emergency.  Residents will be invited to be 
involved in putting together our action plan and to have regular 
opportunities to develop future proposals as they arise.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

GM 5 Year Environment Plan https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/media/1986/5-year-plan-
branded_3.pdf

For Further Information Contact: Mark Widdup – Director of 
Neighbourhoods
mark.widdup@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 49

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/1986/5-year-plan-branded_3.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/1986/5-year-plan-branded_3.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/1986/5-year-plan-branded_3.pdf
mailto:mark.widdup@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Draft terms of reference of the Climate Emergency Working Group

1. It is proposed that the draft terms of reference for a working group should be: 

 To scrutinise the development of new carbon emissions reduction targets for 
the Council beyond 2020; 

 To consider the effectiveness of planned activities to meet the Council’s 2038 
carbon neutral commitment;

 To propose new actions to achieve the above, drawing out budgetary and 
other resource implications for the Council and the Borough; 

 To suggest oversight and review mechanisms in order to ensure progress 
towards targets;

 To collate and consider good practice from other cities, towns and local 
authorities from the UK and internationally;

 To consider how the powers which city and regional agencies currently 
possess can be better used to achieve the above and where further asks 
need to be made of national government;

 To ensure that its work is fully informed by the need to address inequalities 
across the Borough’s communities in relation to climate issues;

 To draft initial recommendations by no later than March 2020. 

2. Cross-party membership of such a group will reflect the significance of the 
issues which it will address. Members will also be able to invite external 
partners, third sector bodies and community voices to make representation 
and presentations to the Working Group.

3. The suggested membership of the Climate Emergency Woking Group is as 
follows:-

 Councillors – Cross Party (2 Labour, 1 Con, 1 LD)
 Representative from a new Climate Change Business Group
 Member of Youth Parliament
 Action Together (Community and Voluntary Sector Organisations Rep)
 Residents (2)
 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RSL representative)
 Academic support from University sector
 Director of Neighbourhoods
 Head of Policy and Performance

NB - Officers from Legal, Finance and other services will attend as and when 
required

Page 50



4. This approach offers a good opportunity to engage with the Borough’s 
residents in ways which can support the Council’s community empowerment 
ambitions. The UN, for instance, has been commending the use of a Talanoa 
dialogue for such purposes. This is an open, participative and creative means 
of seeking to make wise decisions for the collective good. It has its origins in 
community practice in Fiji and other Pacific islands and has been adopted by 
the UN for the purposes of getting parties together to talk about climate 
change issues. It is being actively promoted by the UN as part of a collective 
conversation about how the main aims of the Paris climate agreements are 
progressing.

5. It is proposed that the Working Group will facilitate a ‘Citizen’s Assembly’ in 
the Borough to seek the views of our residents on the issue of Climate 
Change and the Green agenda.  Views collected from this Assembly will be 
included in the formulation of our strategies and plans and will form the basis 
of an open dialogue with our residents as the action plan is rolled out.  

6. In addition, given children and young people are key stakeholders in this 
agenda it is proposed to facilitate a Young Person’s Conference/Workshop 
which will be dedicated to listening to their views and ideas and how they 
want to be engaged throughout this process.

7. The Council considers it appropriate to engage in a positive way with all 
organisations which may have an interest in Climate Change. To this end will 
be actively inviting groups including ‘Extinction Rebellion’ and others to 
engage in the development of our draft Strategy and action planning and to 
assist us to deliver our ambitions working towards 2038.  

8. The climate justice agenda is particularly important in relation both to local 
communities and on a global scale. The Working Group will be sensitive to 
the fact that climate change can act as an additional stress on vulnerable 
communities in the Borough, particularly around flood risk and increased 
summer heat.

9. There is evidence that climate change is very strongly gendered in its 
impacts. Globally girls and women are often the first to have to deal with the 
effects of changing weather on their families’ security and wellbeing and the 
first to suffer from the effects of conflict.  It is therefore proposed that the 
working group should look to reflect this key dimension of climate change in 
its own composition and ensure equal gender representation on the group.

Page 51



Appendix 2

Examples of current activity Rochdale Council is doing to support the Climate 
Emergency Motion

1. Using the six broad themes in the Strategy the current activity can be 
summarised as follows

Our energy supply – the source of power and heat to our buildings and transport

Increasing local renewable electricity generation, de-carbonising how we heat our 
buildings, increasing the diversity and flexibility of our supply

 The Council has secured planning consent for a 5MW solar Chamber House 
Farm, Heywood.  Exploring involvement in a GM ‘Unlocking Green Energy 
Bid’ to fund up to 40% of construction costs with energy generated by the 
farm put into the national grid and sold back to the Council as a saving on its 
energy bill.  

 Existing River Roch hydro scheme adjacent to Rochdale interchange – TfGM

Our travel and transport – how we move and how goods are transported
Increasing use of public transport and active travel routes

 Development of a Rochdale Local Cycling and Walking Plan (LCWIP) to 
implement new/improved cycle links in areas of perceived greatest 
opportunity to change travel behaviours. Funding sought from GMCA/Dft 
and/or developer contributions

 Beelines – working with GMCA on a number of cycle corridor scheme to 
promote walking/cycling schemes from the likes of GM Mayor’s Challenge 
Fund and/or DfT, developer contribution.

 Castleton cycle corridor MCF scheme - £1.4m grant from GM Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund to provide an improved cycle/walking corridor through centre 
of Castleton around railway station 

 Sudden – Rochdale cycle corridor – see MCF comments above, up to £10M 
scheme which we are seeking Transport for North/DfT funding Castleton 
Station Masterplan – re-use of vacant land for up to 2,000 residential units, 

Page 52



new station parking and commercial uses on brownfield land within 10 
minutes walking distance of Castleton railway station. Lobbying for additional 
rail investment 

 The Highways Service have project managed the implementation of 4 Electric 
Car Charging units across the Borough within publicly accessible car parks. 
EV users can join the scheme and park for free whilst charging at 
https://www.chargeyourcar.org.uk/ the team continue to contribute ideas and 
support the implementation of “rapid” EV charging points via TfGM and OLEV 
funding.

 The Car Parking team offer permits for parking and a differential charge for 
the cost of the permit based on CO2 emissions, the classification is 185g/CO2 
are charged at a lower rates and higher emitting vehicle classes are charged 
at a higher rate.

 The Highways team have been part of a major multi-modal policy study for 
Greater Manchester called “Streets for All”. Officers and elected Members 
have attended workshops on how road space can be reallocated along major 
strategic corridors to encourage different modes of travel and be a destination 
in their own right.

 Rochdale Station Gateway Masterplan – residential led masterplan for around 
800 new homes, commercial uses, new public square, transport interchange, 
walking and cycling links to Town Centre and 500 space P & R around 
Rochdale railway station.  Lobbying for additional rail investment 

 Acquisition of land at Smithy Bridge station for additional Park and Ride – up 
to 250 spaces 

 The majority of street lighting is via LED bulbs and continues to be the policy 
for bulb replacements.

Phasing out fossil-fuelled private vehicles and replacing them with zero emission 
alternatives;

 Continue to work with GMCA and TfGM as part of the Clean Air Plan
 

Moving to a Green Fleet of Council vehicles

 Transition of Council fleet to electric vehicles - EM have a fleet of 12 Nissan 
eNV200 fully electric small vans that have replaced 12 small diesel vans. This 
removes harmful emissions from approximately 10% of EM’s fleet and 
provides a saving in running costs of £1700 per annum for each vehicle. It is 
our intention to purchase fully electric medium sized vans as soon as they are 
available on the market. EM is also currently working on replacing all of our 

Page 53

https://www.chargeyourcar.org.uk/


non-Euro 6 compliant fleet with new compliant vehicles in order to comply with 
the GM Clean Air Zone in 2021.

 EV charging - EM have installed 17 EV charge points within Green Lane 
Depot consisting of 15x 16amp (slow) and 2 x 32amp (fast). These charge 
points can supply charging for approximately 50+ electric vehicles based on 
an average daily mileage of 27 miles and an average range of 100 miles per 
vehicle.

Tackle the most polluting vehicles on our roads; 

 GM Clean Air Plan
 As part of the Council’s commitment in improving our environment and air 

quality, the Licensing Service engaged the services of a firm called Electric 
Blue under their EVolve project. The purpose of the project was to acquire a 
better understanding both of the practical and financial impact of introducing 
EV’s, for the private hire and taxi trade, within the Borough. This would involve 
providing the necessary information to drivers to assist them to migrate from 
their existing type of licensed vehicles (petrol and diesel) to electric. Individual 
reports are being provided to private hire and taxi drivers to demonstrate the 
feasibility of converting to EV’s / ultra-low emission vehicles. The information 
within the reports are generated from the installation of telematic devices 
within the private hire and taxi vehicles, which captured the following data: 

 Evidence of the main routes and stopping points for the private hire 
and taxi vehicles  – data which perhaps could then be used for any 
future electric charging point requirements and locations;

 The analysis and comparison of the running costs of the existing 
vehicle with an electric vehicle; 

 Quantify the air quality improvements afforded by switching to electric 
vehicles; etc.

In partnership with Electric Blue, the Licensing Service were able to secure 
the ‘buy-in’ from our trade. 

The key findings of the EVolve project included:

 Average daily mileage was around 114 miles. 
 99.9% of all shifts completed by drivers could be completed in an 

Electric Vehicle with just 1 rapid charge top up (15-30 mins) during the 
shift. (8509 of 8514 journeys)

 Over the 28 days of data being collated, the drivers would save almost 
2/3rds of running costs by converting to an EV. (£6,188.27 compared 
to £2,201.42 in a comparative Electric Vehicle)

 There are substantial comparative emissions savings that can be 
made.

Page 54



 £45k of extra disposable income could be available to the drivers. This 
is for 21 vehicles only - this amount can be calculated across the entire 
fleet across converting to EV.

Establishing a zero emissions bus fleet; 

 Continue to work with GMCA and TfGM as part of the Clean Air Plan and 
linked to Bus deregulation 

De-carbonising freight transport and shifting to rail and water transport 

 GM Freight and Logistics Strategy being led by TfGM

Our homes, workplaces and public buildings – the demand for energy to heat the 
places we live and work

Reducing the heat demand from existing homes; 

 The Council continues to implement a programme grant funded, lasting 
energy-saving improvements to private sector properties with measures 
including external and cavity wall insulation, loft insulation, small measures 
(LED lighting, radiator reflector panels, heating controls, etc).
 

 We commission a CIC, EnergyWorks, hosted by Groundwork Oldham, who 
provide energy advice and grant funding across the borough and to all 
tenures.

 
 RBC was recently ‘Commended’ at the North West region of the Energy 

Efficiency Awards for its work in the community

 The manager from EnergyWorks has been awarded ‘Energy Efficiency 
Champion of the Year 2019’ at the recent National Energy Efficiency Awards 
for her work in promoting and delivering energy efficiency measures across 
the borough.

 RBC was the best performing borough in GM in delivering the Green Deal for 
Communities programme, both in terms of number of measures delivered and 
the lowest unit price per measure. 

 Strategic Housing’s activity, on behalf of the council, has been mainly (over 
95%) in the private sector and has achieved the following outputs between 
2012 to date:

Page 55



Measure Number of 
installs

Total cost 
saving p.a 

for 
residents*

Total tonnes CO2 
saved p.a

External wall 
insulation

400 £64k 280

Condensing 
boilers

300 £37.5k 120

First time 
central 
heating

63 £10k 378

Loft 
insulation

20 £3k 8

Cavity wall 
insulation

70 £11.2k 32

Energy use 
advice

5308 £1.75m 3,981

Total 853 £1.877m (per 
annum)

4,799 (tonnes p.a)

*Figures from EST

Reducing the heat demand from existing commercial and public buildings;

 Reduce energy use in own estate- EM currently have plans for the installation 
of a wind turbine and a solar panel installation on the roof of the “Green 
Shed”. In addition we have already installed a voltage optimiser on our 
electricity supply. Further improvements have taken place in respect of the 
installation of double glazed windows throughout the depot and smart LED 
lighting that reduces the amount of power required to light the offices.

 Replacement of Rochdale cremators- the procurement will look at reducing 
energy consumption compared to the current cremators

 Replaced light fittings to LED at six council buildings which will reduce energy 
consumption and maintenance costs

 Fitted solar PV panels to L’boro sports hall roof generating solar power for the 
sports centre and generating a small income for the Council

Page 56



 Replaced heating boilers at three primary schools over the summer to more 
energy efficient boilers linked to building a management system that will help 
further reduce consumption

 Fitted a new energy management system to N1R which is helping manage 
our systems more efficiently and reducing energy consumption 

 
 Bio mass boiler will run throughout the winter months which generates an 

income at N1R, the boiler is used at peak times when the building heating 
output is at its maximum to reduce gas consumption

 Light Feature to the front entrance at N1R needs replacing, the replacement 
fittings will be LED which will double the lifespan of the fittings and will be 
more efficient

 Energy awareness newsletter to be prepared for all schools and service leads 
in corporate assets which will give energy advice on how to reduce energy 
consumption 

 Staff are constantly reminded to switch off products when not in use. In 
particular heavy use items such as ovens

Reducing the heat demand in new buildings.

 GMSF emerging policies around this – Planning are considering an option for 
Rochdale to work up a local planning policy guidance document on this and 
other e.g. Solar 

Our consumption and production of resources – how sustainably we produce 
goods and services and what we do with them after we have used them

Producing goods and services more sustainably, moving to a circular economy; 

 Link with STaR on procurement issues and look to undertake Climate Change 
Impact Assessment on all large procurement decisions over OJEU limits 
(£180K)

Becoming more responsible consumers; 

 Promote key messages through Council and Partner communications and 
marketing to residents

 Continue to promote recycling with particular emphasis on Food waste 

Managing our waste as sustainably as possible; 

 The Council is launching an Eco-Business Scheme in November 2019 which 
will be promoted at all opportunities by officers across Public Protection.  The 
scheme will raise awareness and encourage businesses to become more 

Page 57



sustainable and they can make a pledge and sign up to the scheme.  
Commitments will be made by those that sign up which relate to the following 
areas: Energy Efficiency (LED bulbs, turn off electrical equipment, encourage 
walking, cycling to work, car share) Waste & Food Waste Reduction, Plastic 
Minimisation, Reducing Environmental Impact.  We will also be signposting 
businesses to support and available funding via the Business Growth Hub and 
will promote businesses that sign up and they will get something to display at 
their premise.  The scheme is currently being finalised and we aim to formally 
launch it in November.  Branding and criteria has just been agreed and signed 
off.  

Reducing unnecessary food waste.

 Continue our efforts in promoting recycling of food waste

 Raise awareness with Schools who currently procure mixed waste collections

Our natural environment – increasing the wide range of benefits provided by our 
air, land, water and biodiversity

Managing our land sustainably; 

 Improve the public realm in Rochdale Town Centre through the Town Hall 
Restoration Project. Creating high quality urban greenspace, improving 
sustainable drainage etc 

 Naturalisation of grass verges and open spaces across the borough – by 
changing from a grass monoculture to planting with a wider variety of plant 
species which will encourage a greater biodiversity. These areas also require 
less mowing and maintenance once established so reducing fuel usage.

 Identify new allotment locations – ongoing piece of work to increase allotment 
provision across the borough. Allotment use can reduce food miles and 
residents’ carbon budgets by growing their own. 

Managing our water and its environmental sustainability

 The Littleborough to Rochdale town centre flood risk management project in 
partnership with the Environment Agency will better protect more than 1000 
homes and businesses 

 Our partnership with the National Flood Forum supported by the Regional 
Flood and Coastal Committee works with communities and businesses 
vulnerable to flood risk helping to promote a culture of personal and 
neighbourhood flood resilient behaviour and support local flood action groups. 

Page 58



 We are working with the Mersey Forest and Environment Agency to deliver 
Natural Flood Risk Management measures in the South Pennine fringes of 
the borough 

 Working with the GMCA, Regional Flood and Coastal Committee, EA and 
United Utilities to develop, promote and deliver best practice in sustainable 
urban drainage (Fran)

Achieving a net gain in biodiversity for new development;

 We are working with the GMCA and Natural England to develop a GM wide 
approach to promoting and delivering biodiversity net gain through new 
development.
 

Increasing investment into our natural environment;
 

 There is the GM Natural Capital Investment Plan which seeks to identify a 
pipeline of projects and existing and new streams of investments that can be 
utilised.

 Through our Pennine Edge Forest initiative and working with City of Trees, 
Woodland Trust and the Forestry Commission we are supporting the 
development of the Northern Forest project and working to identify land that 
could be included in new tree planting proposals and further funding 
opportunities to support this.

 Littleborough/Hollingworth Lake Masterplan – improved recreational 
opportunities around Hollingworth Lake - Link 4 Life

 Currently involved in the development and implementation of the Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Plan to tackle nitrogen dioxide exceedances.  
Stakeholder engagement work has taken place and the results are being 
considered across AGMA and with TfGM.  We are planning to take part in 
public consultation on the clean air plan.  Nicola Rogers and Laura Elliott are 
leading on this area of work. 

 A real time air quality monitoring station is to be installed in the borough.

 Monitoring of NOX at various points across the borough currently takes place 
by the installation of monitoring tubes at points across the borough.  The 
number of monitoring points has recently been increased.  

Increasing engagement with our natural environment.

Page 59



 Development and improvements across our Parks and Countryside services 
to encourage participation and more people using the outdoors

 We are working as a member organisation with Pennine Prospects who are 
developing proposals for a South Pennines People’s Park which celebrates 
the South Pennines and its landscape and wildlife, promotes better access for 
recreation and by public transport, supports a sustainable rural economy and 
encourages the delivery of sustainable land management and environmental 
services for climate resilience e.g. peatland restoration that supports carbon 
and flood risk management.

Our resilience and adaptation to climate change – how resilient we are to climate 
change and how well we adapt to its impacts

Embedding climate change resilience and adaptation in all policies;

Increasing the resilience of an investment in our critical infrastructure;

Implementing a priorities programme of nature-based climate adaptation action; 

Improving monitoring and reporting

 These areas will be developed as our plans become more detailed

Page 60



DRAFT

Our plan of action for the planet

2020 - 2025P
age 61



Effects of climate change
Harmful greenhouse gases are in the 
atmosphere. They come from human 

activity and natural processes 

Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Lead member for Climate Change

Steve Rumbelow
Chief Executive

Pollution is having a major impact on the natural environment 
and our health. It is causing the planet to get hotter which is 
leading to rising sea levels, warmer and acidic oceans, more 
rain and heatwaves. These environmental changes bring a 
threat of flooding, drought, land erosion, loss of habitation for 
wildlife and an increase in heat and cold related illness. Our 
borough has already suffered terrible flooding which has 
caused disruption to essential services, transport and loss of 
income for local businesses, so we know the devastation it can 
bring. In the UK, 40,000 people die annually from air pollution. 
Around 10% of Rochdale’s population have a respiratory 
disease and it is estimated that around 4.2% of deaths in 
Rochdale are related to respiratory diseases caused by air 
pollution. The climate emergency is threatening our existence 
and we must act quickly. Pollution mostly comes from human 
activity so we must all increase our efforts to reduce our own 
impact on the planet. 

Our borough is facing major environmental challenges. The 
Council must help to limit the rise in global temperatures, 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, reduce the amount of waste 
that is produced and ensure places and spaces are resilient to 
the shocks and stresses of climate change. This plan identifies 
the urgent action we need to take to achieve environmental 
sustainability and enhance the prosperity of people and the 
planet. This includes using renewable sources of energy for 
powering transport and heating buildings, being more efficient 
and responsible when we are making, buying and using goods 
and services, protecting and maintaining the natural 
environment and ensuring that our infrastructure can 
withstand expected and unexpected situations. Taking climate 
action will improve lives, not diminish them. It can deliver 
additional benefits such as improved health, job opportunities 
and bringing people together. Most of all it will secure a future 
for the next generation.

P
age 62



Impact of climate change

Weather is 
more 

extreme

The planet is heating up 
which is having a 

negative effect on the 
natural environment

Nitrogen dioxide
(NO2)

Methane
Carbon dioxide 

(CO2)

Oceans are 
warmer, 

acidic and 
sea levels 
are rising Deforestation means there 

are less trees to absorb 
carbon dioxide

Antarctic ice 
and glaciers 
are melting

Farming 
contributes to 

greenhouse gases

Burning fossil fuels 
contributes to 

greenhouse gases

Decomposing waste 
creates carbon 

dioxide and methane 

P
age 63



Poor air quality and warmer and 
colder temperatures 

Heat and cold related illnesses, 
respiratory and communicable 

diseases 

People in poor health and dying 
earlier, reduced productivity, 
pressure on health services

Warm and acidic 
oceans and changing landscapes

Not habitable for marine and other
wildlife, plants, trees and shrubs

Wildlife and plant decline, loss of 
wildlife habitats, loss of food and 

medicines

Storms and heavy rainfall  
Rising sea levels and flooding from 
water courses and surface water 

runoff 

Land erosion, damage to buildings, 
pressure on infrastructure, 

disruption to services/supply chains

Hotter summers and
 milder winters

Drought, increase in tropical insects Pressure on water resources, risk to 
crops, transmission of diseases

Waste 
Pollutes soil and water, attracts 

pests, easy to ignite, slow to 
decompose

Hygiene and contamination issues 
lead to sickness, wildfires, harmful 
chemicals and gases released into 

the atmosphere

Scarce resources 
(energy, food, water)

Cost of living increases e.g. utility 
bills and insurance premiums Slow economic growth and poverty

European and UK climate change policy and targets
The European Union and UK Government have set targets for reducing the impact of climate change

P
age 64



Global warming
The Paris Agreement 2015
Keep global temperatures well below 2°C and aim for 1.5 °C

Carbon dioxide emissions 
The Paris Agreement 2015
Reduce global greenhouse gas emissions to below 1990 levels by second half of the 21st century
Climate Change Act 2008
Bring UK carbon dioxide emissions to net zero by 2050

Nitrogen dioxide emissions 
The Air Quality Standards Regulations 2010
 NO2 emissions to comply with EU Limit Values in the shortest possible time

 The hourly mean value may not exceed 200 micrograms per cubic metre (µg/m3) more than 18 times in a year 
 The NO2 annual mean value may not exceed 40 micrograms per cubic metre

Renewable energy
Renewable energy directive 2018
32% of energy is fulfilled by renewables by 2030 
10% of transport fuels come from renewable sources by 2030

Waste management
The Waste Framework Directive 2008
Cut the amount of waste going to landfill by 10% by 2035
65% of municipal waste to be recycled by 2035
70% of packaging waste to be recycled by 2030 (85% of paper and cardboard, 80% of Ferrous metals, 80% aluminium, 75% glass
Halve per capita, food waste at the retail and consumer level 

Regional policy and targets
The Greater Manchester Combined Authority has set targets for Greater Manchester, aligned with European and national policy 

P
age 65



Carbon dioxide emissions
Greater Manchester Environment Plan 2019
Bring carbon dioxide emissions to net zero by 2038
10% reduction in heating and cooling demand by 2025 with a 22% total reduction by 2038
38% reduction in industrial emissions by 2025 with a 50-77% reduction by 2038
Retrofit 61,000 homes per year by 2024
Public buildings to obtain an average Display Energy Certificate (DEC) rating of D or better by 2024 and C by 2030 

Nitrogen dioxide emissions
Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 2019
Reduce NO2 emissions on road links where modelling has identified exceedances beyond 2020 (152 stretches of road identified across GM) 
Greater Manchester Environment Plan 2019
100% of all cars are zero emissions by 2035
100% of all buses are zero emissions by 2035

Renewable energy
Greater Manchester Environment Plan 2019
Add 45MW of local renewable electricity generation by 2024
Add 10TWh of low carbon heating by 2024
Add another 45MW of energy supply through other sources 
20% renewable energy generation at new developments

Waste management
Greater Manchester Environment Plan 2019
Limit any increase in the quantity of waste produced to 20% 
Achieve a recycling rate of 65% by 2035

Natural environment
Greater Manchester Environment Plan 2019 - 2024
Plant 3 million trees by 2035 and a further 1-2 million by 2050
Restore 50-75% of peatlands by 2038

Local policy and targets 
On 17th July 2019 Rochdale Council passed a motion on climate change

P
age 66



The Council resolves to: 

 Declare a climate emergency

 Work towards ensuring that the borough is carbon neutral by 2050, in line with the Mayor and the Government’s targets. Achieving 
this will require significant investment and policy initiatives from the Government, and Council hopes it would be achieved earlier 
than 2050

 Work towards ensuring that the Council is carbon neutral by 2038, recognising the leadership role it has in the borough

 Develop a working group to support the Council move from declaration to delivery drawing in cross sector expertise, capacity and 
capability. The working group should draw on existing expertise within the borough as well as including residents who are 
representative of the borough as a whole

 Set in place a process of engagement and collaborative action that enables an action plan to be considered by Cabinet and Council 
in early 2020, based on achieving the aforementioned targets

The climate emergency in Rochdale
Friends of the Earth have said that Rochdale is only 72% climate friendly 

P
age 67



Reducing Rochdale’s greenhouse gas emissions
Greenhouse gases are the biggest threat to our planet. The Council has committed to reducing carbon emissions by 2038

Rochdale is producing 0.9 million 
tonnes of carbon dioxide 

emissions (MtCO2) as at 2019. 
42% of emissions come from 

housing, 26% from transport, and 
32% are industrial and 
commercial emissions.

Rochdale has 10 stretches of road (road 
links) where concentrations of nitrogen 
dioxide are forecast to exceed legal limit 

values beyond 2020. 

The Rochdale area 
currently has only 13MW 

of renewable power.

In Rochdale only 12% of people 
commute by public transport, 
1% cycle and 10% walk. Only 

12% share their car.

Rochdale only has 10 public 
electric vehicle charging points 

(EV).

Only 37% of homes in Rochdale 
are well insulated and 13% of 

households can’t afford to heat 
their homes properly.

Rochdale reuses, recycles 
and composts 48% of its 

household waste.

Only 5% of the Rochdale 
area is woodland

Source: https://takeclimateaction.uk/climate-action/how-climate-friendly-your-
area-enter-your-postcode-see-results-your-community

Blanket bog is important for habitat 
and provides a carbon store, helping 

to reduce flood risk. 5.4% of the 
borough is blanket bog but not all is 

in good condition. 

P
age 68



The Tyndall Centre at Manchester University has said that we must make a fair contribution to reducing carbon dioxide emissions to achieve net 
zero by 2100. A fair contribution in Rochdale means reducing emissions by at least 13% per year, staying within a maximum carbon budget of 8.1 
million tonnes (MtCO2) from now until 2100. However, it is recommended that Rochdale stays within a recommended budget of 6.2 million tonnes 
(MtCO2) to achieve as near as possible to zero by 2038. To be wholly carbon neutral by 2038, an even smaller carbon budget, with accelerated 
reduction rates is required over the next 18 years. 

The Council has committed to bringing nitrogen dioxide emissions to within legal limits 

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority has said that we must implement clean air measures for the highest polluting vehicles to ensure that 
the 10 stretches of roads in Rochdale that are  modelled to exceed EU  legal limit values beyond 2020, will comply as soon as possible. 

0.93

0.07

0

2010 2014 2018 2022 2026 2030 2034 2038 2042 2046 2050 2054 2058 2062 2066 2070 2074 2078 2082 2086 2090 2094 2098
0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Pathway Projections for Rochdale

YEARS

M
TC

O
2

4.0

2.1

1.0

0.5
0.3

0.1 0.1

2018-2022 2023-2027 2028-2032 2033-2037 2038-2042 2043-2047 2048-2100
0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

Cumulative CO2 emissions for budget period from 2018 to 
2100 for Rochdale

M
t C

O
2

P
age 69



 Phase 1: Buses, taxis and commercial vehicles by 2021
 Phase 2: Long Goods Vehicles (LGV’s) by 2023

Summary of exceedances in Rochdale before and after clean air measures
Local Model point 
exceedances on 
Pollution Climate 
Modelling (PCM) 
links

Additional Local 
Model point 
exceedances on 
local roads (non 
PCM links)

Total Local Model 
point exceedances

2021
Without Clean Air Measures 10 0 10

Clean Air Phase 1 2 0 2

Change in exceedances -8 0 -8

2023
Without Clean Air Measures 2 0 2

Clean Air Phase 2 0 0 0

Change in exceedances -2 0 -2

Our sustainability goals and outcomes
The Council’s goals and outcomes align with the Sustainable Development Goals and Greater Manchester Environmental Plan

P
age 70



Deliver the following co-benefits in tackling climate change

Social sustainability

Economic sustainability

Environmental sustainability

Build the resilience of those most vulnerable to climate-related events

Access to adequate, safe and affordable housing and basic services

Less exposure to environmental shocks and disasters, in particular flooding from rivers and surface water

Less people living in poverty (including fuel poverty)

Support sustainable food production and practices that can withstand climate change

More local food production

More eating of healthier and plant-based food, with less and better reared meat

More resilient agricultural practices

Relieve the burden of climate related illness and disease

P
age 71



Less air, water and land pollution and contamination

Less respiratory and communicable or infectious diseases

Healthier lifestyle habits, working environments and green spaces 

Build knowledge and skills in sustainability

School pupils educated in sustainable development and sustainable lifestyles

Education and vocational training programmes to support careers in a green economy

Workforces equipped with the right skills for working in greener industries and sectors

Empower women and girls to support  economic growth and development

More girls and young women particpating in Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) subjects

More women working in the clean tech sector

Women as stewards of natural and household resources are involved in climate action

Manage demand for water and threats to water security resulting from climate change

Better water-use efficiency

P
age 72



Better management, protection and restoration of water-related ecosystems, rivers, lakes etc. 

Strong surface water management  to reduce risk of sewer flooding

Less water needing to be treated to improve water quality 

Reduce use of fossil fuels that are harmful to the environment

More renewable electricity generation 

More diversity and flexibility of energy supply including low carbon heating and hydro power

Fossil fuelled private vehicles, bus and other fleets replaced with zero emission capable alternatives

Freight transport shifted to rail and water transport

Support clean and green growth for a sustained economy

New industries at the forefront of clean and green innovation e.g. advanced materials, digital technologies

More companies trading in low carbon environmental goods and services 

New types of jobs supporting clean and green growth

Reduce the intensity of carbon emissions from the industry sector

Circular and resource efficient production models that reduce waste and encourage recycling

P
age 73



More environmentally friendly equipment, technologies and processes 

Infrastructure and industries upgraded or retrofitted

Advance equal opportunity and reduce inequalities of outcomes in addressing climate change

Enhanced representation and voice for young people

Diverse and vulnerable groups supported to move to cleaner and greener ways of living

Those most vulnerable to climate change benefitting first from climate action 

Make urban areas cleaner, greener and with climate responsive infrastructure

Inclusive, sustainable, resilient and accessible buildings, roads, green and public spaces

Sustainable drainage plus measures for relieving heat stress/providing cooling

Well connected and sustainable public transport systems and active travel (cycling and walking)

The most polluting vehicles removed from town centres 

The natural environment included in the design of urban areas (blue/green infrastructure)

Implementation of risk and disaster mitigation, adaptation and management measures

Protect the loss of scarce resources through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

P
age 74



Reduced waste, including food and plastic waste

Increased recycling of different types of materials e.g. paper, cardboard, aluminium, glass 

Reduced heat demand from existing homes, new buildings and commercial and public buildings 

Harvested rainwater used as a resource in combatting climate events (drought, flooding)

Raise awareness to make it easy to identify and respond to the impact of climate change

Carbon literacy for all

Good examples of energy saving behaviour

Volunteering opportunities for climate action and nature restoration projects

Protect areas for aquatic biodiversity 

Aquatic habitats created or enhanced

Reduce and mitigate land and water activity that causes damage to aquatic habitats 

Aquatic wildlife sustained by tackling destructive fishing practices and managing aquaculture and tourism

Protect and restore vital ecosystems and species

Achieving a net gain in biodiversity through new development

P
age 75



Increased tree and wildflower planting as part of sustainable drainage systems

Wildlife habitats created, enhanced or protected from harm, including managing and restoring peatlands

Increased and maintained green spaces, green belt and designated nature sites

Mobilise change through effective participation and governance 

Dedicated political and officer leads for climate change

Responsive, inclusive, participatory and representative decision-making at all levels

Environmental sustainability criteria embedded in policies, plans, processes e.g. procurement, planning etc.

Progress reported against achievement of climate change actions and targets

Deliver sustainability goals through cooperation, finance and data

Multi-stakeholder partnerships that share resources including knowledge, expertise, technology, money

Funding to support work in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and nature restoration

High-quality, timely and reliable data to understand the current and future climate position

P
age 76



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 20th February 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture, 
Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance 
Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2019) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2019-20

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is attached 
at Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



3.4 This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must be 
completed, to support achievement of the action.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview

Two actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 have been complete. 
71% (12) actions are ongoing and are due to be complete on schedule. Three 
(18%) further actions have passed their due dates and are not fully complete 
(Amber). The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3. 

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed (Amber) 
relate to:

 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough
 Sustain as a minimum our recycling rate (in year 2019/20) whilst 

reviewing current waste management strategy to improve rates in 
conjunction with the governments resources & waste strategy

 Accelerated Housing Programme

Quarter 3 Highlights

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour partnership group has been 
established to drive forward the development of the Anti-Social Behaviour 
strategy and action plan. This work is on progress and due to be completed by 

Page 78



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

the end of quarter 4. 

As part of the plan to embed public service reform across the borough the 
Heywood Place Team is now fully operational with drop ins and multi-agency 
partners in place. Additional peripatetic teams are in place in Middleton and 
Pennines with plans to develop a Cooperative Place Partnership in a test area 
in Pennines.

A new Corporate Plan (2019-2022) has been developed and approved via the 
Council’s governance process. The development of a joint Equality and 
Diversity Strategy for the Council and CCG has now been completed and due 
for sign off early 2020.

In order to improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces there have 
been improvements in how cases are logged which will provide additional 
operational time to clear fly-tipping. Draft procedures have been shared with 
officers and the portfolio holder in regards to implementing a new highways 
advertising board permit scheme.

Discussions are progressing with housing providers to agree a build 
programme for the delivery of affordable and supported housing. GM housing 
are to invest £4m in Riverside Phase Two development. 

The construction of the south Heywood J19 link road has been delayed due to 
a s106 dispute with a landowner; this has now been resolved and found in 
favour of the developer. Service work is commence imminently with the 
anticipated start date of the main contract summer 2020.

Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Page 79



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 
2019-20

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 80



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

NDP1901 Work in partnership to implement new Community Safety Plan to reduce crime and disorder 31 January 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1901.A Develop and sign off new Domestic Abuse Strategy for borough 30 November 2019   

The Draft Domestic Abuse Strategy is still in place and being accessed by partners and is being overseen by a multi-agency Domestic Abuse Steering Group. A 
strategic needs assessment is being undertaken by partners to better inform our final strategy. 

NDP1901.B Complete new Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy for the borough 31 January 2020   

A new Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour partnership group has been established to drive forward the development of the strategy and action plan. On 
progress to be completed by end of Q4. 

        

NDP1902 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated 
community 

31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1902.A 
Through project with Government develop an insight into community settlement patterns in the 
borough and the impact on services 

31 December 2019   

Analysis on local datasets has commenced by council analyst which will demonstrate how the tool can be practically used to develop and inform policy. Final report 
on demographic patterns and migration patterns due before end of financial year. 

NDP1902.B 
Support Rochdale Connections Trust and M6 Theatre to deliver ‘Building Stronger Britain 
Together’ projects 

29 February 2020   

BSBT projects complete and showcased to Home Office and local partners. 

NDP1902.C Deliver with Foundation 4 Peace the ‘Families for Peace’ programme across the borough 31 March 2020   

The commissioned work from the Council has been completed and Foundations 4 Peace are including their work across the borough. At least 60 people were 
trained in conflict resolution and community dialogue facilitation. 

P
age 81



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

        

NDP19003 Roll out work of integrated place based teams to reduce crisis demand and deliver value for 
money and wider benefits 

29 February 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1903.A Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA 31 December 2019  

Edge Hill University Colleagues have completed a full summary report reviewing ten years of citizen action and research to date in Rochdale Borough. The 
challenges have been completed for 2019-20 and the group is working towards challenges for 20-21, including participation in the Ageing in Place programme in 
the borough. 

NDP1903.B Following pilot stages, have in place active Place Teams based in each of the 5 townships 29 February 2020  

Operational teams are working well and plans are in place to work in the Pennines area. 749 people are being supported with 68% demand reduction in all cases 
and 66% sustained positive outcomes. 

        

NDP1904 Agree plan for embedding Public Service Reform across the borough 31 October 2019   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1904.A 
Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social 
Care following reform benchmark exercise 

30 September 2019   

The Strategic Assessment has been reviewed and will be included in considerations for the future of partnership activity as part of the Public Service Reform 
Steering Group / links to the Strategic Place Board. 

NDP1904.B Begin implementation of new service models 31 October 2019   

The Heywood Place Team is now fully operational with drop ins and multi-agency partners in place. Additional peripatetic teams are in place in Middleton and 
Pennines with plans to develop a Cooperative Place Partnership in a test area in Pennines. 

P
age 82



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

        

NDP1905 Transform and improve customer, digital and information governance provision 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1905.A 
Deliver Phase 1 (analysis) and commence Phase 2 (delivery) of Customer Transformation 
Programme 

31 October 2019   

Phase 1 of the Customer Transformation Programme is complete and will be used to inform the delivery phase. Planning is underway in relation to developing the 
Council's online portal (My Account) as well the Customer Relationship Management System (CRM) 

NDP1905.B Agree final partnership delivery plan relating to Digital Strategy 31 December 2019   

In Q3 the draft digital strategy has been shared with colleagues and partners and internal consultation will take place from January 2020 in terms of finalizing the 
strategy and supporting delivery plan 

NDP1905.C Undertake review of Contact Centre provision options and propose future operating model 31 March 2020   

Research on technical requirements has been undertaken and an initial paper in relation to the future role of the Customer Contact Centre has been prepared. 
Meetings have taken place regarding possible additional services that could be included in the future operating model. 

        

NDP1906 Promote the borough as a desirable place to live, work and do business. 31 July 2019  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1906.A Work with internal stakeholders to determine communication priorities for 2019/20 31 July 2019  

P
age 83



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Service priorities have been agreed with departments and work has been progressed. 
 
Some campaigns are still to be agreed, including one that will be focussed on inward investment. 
 
The communications team is providing regular updates of performance to members of wider leadership and relevant members. 

        

NDP1907 Determine vision and priorities to offer strategic direction for the and the Borough and the 
Council 

31 December 2019  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1907.A Develop a new Corporate Plan for 2019/ 2020 onwards 30 September 2019  

The Corporate Plan 2019 - 2022 has been developed and has been considered through the Council's governance process, receiving approval at Full Council on 18th 
December 2019. 

NDP1907.B Develop a joint Equality and Diversity Strategy for the Borough for Council and CCG 31 December 2019  

The draft strategy has now been developed through extensive consultation and will be taken through the Council and CCG governance processes in the New Year. 

        

NDP1908 Modify the homelessness prevention strategy in line with legislative changes, GM and national 
priorities 

31 March 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1908.A Audit existing strategy 30 June 2019   

P
age 84



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Phase 2 of the review has identified 5 key themes that we are working through across partners and with the support of Future Gov. Phase 1 has identified 
blockages/system failures and the processes needed to create person centred holistic approaches. In Phase 2 we will be proto typing new ways of working and 
increasing the evidence base to support the implementation of change. 

NDP1908.B 
Identify strategic priorities inc. issues relating to housing access and supply; out of borough 
placements; early intervention and prevention 

31 August 2019   

There is collective agreement that the current model and in some ways reflected in the current and now out of date strategy does not deliver the level of good 
outcomes for people that need housing or are at risk of homelessness. The proto typing will reflect new ways of working and is linking in directly with other 
corporate aims around workforce transformation and the review of supported accommodation. It also highlights the increasing lack of accessible and affordable 
housing for those most at risk of homelessness which will feed in directly to the updated Housing Strategy for the borough. 

NDP1908.C Establish a regional Strategy sub group 30 September 2019   

An updated paper on OOB will be presented to Reform Board and we have met with colleagues in MCC to discuss current situation. MCC are seeking to re-
commission their current provision although without committed and collaborative action from across the GM partnership to increase housing supply, there will be 
no short term resolution. MCC has confirmed that all households placed within the borough will receive support from their accommodation team and that MCC will 
retain the rehousing duty. 

NDP1908.D Develop a revised Homelessness strategy 31 March 2020   

We have requested agreement from CLG to 'delay' review of current strategy until the comprehensive service review has completed. We may be required to issue a 
'position statement' to this effect. 

        

NDP1909 Modify the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme meets statutory requirements and 
makes the maximises the use of housing stock in the borough 

31 March 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1909.A Review of current policy and scheme to ensure it is fit for purpose 30 June 2019  

Review continuing and further work required to look at continuing provision and meeting statutory duty throughout service transformation. 

NDP1909.B Commission and undertake Phase 1 of business transformation study / service development 31 August 2019  

P
age 85



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Complete 

NDP1909.C Develop and implement quick wins and explore opportunities identified by Phase 1. 31 December 2019  

Phase 1 complete. 

NDP1909.D 
Phase 2 - develop consultation and implementation plans for longer term changes identified 
through Phase 1 

31 January 2020  

Transformation Bid to fund Phase 2 complete and all other relevant documentation complete. Waiting for sign off, before planning and development can start. 

NDP1909.E Review housing outcomes 31 March 2020  

On-going; 50% complete 

        

NDP1910 Commence a CPO Programme for 36 sites across the borough 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1910.A Commence the statutory CPO process on the priority list of problem sites and buildings 31 March 2020   

Negotiations and site-specific discussions ongoing on four CPO sites. One CPO site close to contract exchange to willing developer. One freehold interest in CPO site 
acquired by Council at auction. 

        

NDP1911 Sustain as a minimum our recycling rate (in year 2019/20) whilst reviewing current waste 
management strategy to improve rates in conjunction with the governments resources & waste strategy. 

31 July 2019   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

P
age 86



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

NDP1911.A 
Present recommendations for refresh of Rochdale’s Waste Strategy to encompass where 
appropriate recommendations from DEFRA Waste & Resources with a view to implementation of 
recommendations in 20/21 

30 June 2019  

Development work continues, in house case management system has been expanded to include additional 'modules' 75% 

NDP1911.B 
Implement a programme of targeted activities to take place in 2019/20 to promote recycling, re-
use and reductions in household waste 

31 July 2019  

Recycling officers carried out a number of workshops at primary schools, also undertook engagement sessions at local shopping centres. Schools competition for 
artwork for recycling vans completed and winning entries selected by the collection crews 

        

NDP1912 Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces and public realm 31 January 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1912.A Develop a process to address Fly-tipping and side-waste at bin collection points and alleyways 30 June 2019  

Back office changes to how cases are logged in development which will provide additional operational time to clear fly tipping. First cases submitted to legal under 
s108 of Environment Act 

NDP1912.B 
Implement Highways Advertising Board permit scheme to regulate obstructions in high-footfall 
areas 

31 January 2020  

Draft procedure has been shared with colleagues in Public Protection, Highways and Portfolio holder for comment and is to proceed to further development 

        

NDP1913 Highways Input to Support Economic/Housing growth 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1913.A Commence construction South Heywood J19 Link Road 30 June 2019   

P
age 87



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Dispute resolution process regarding the s106 agreement with one of the land owners is now complete and found in favour of the developer. ITT process and 
advanced statutory undertaker service diversions to commence imminently. Anticipated start date for the main contract is now summer 2020 

NDP1913.B Support GMSF/Northern Gateway, RR Phase 2 and Station Gateway 31 March 2020   

Highway Development Control have continued to provide advice and consultation responses to all planning applications, including details on the Locality 
Assessments for GMSF proposals and pre-application advice 

NDP1913.C Town Centre master planning including a new Rochdale Town Centre traffic model 31 March 2020   

Work has continued through the quarter with detailed workshops on the different Township masterplan proposals 

        

NDP1914 Capitalise on the delivery of the Highways Capital Programme & Additional Investment – 
leading to improved road condition 

31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1914.A Deliver LTP capital programme 31 March 2020   

The two year LTP programme will be completed on the 5th October. Currently ahead of programme and within budget. 

NDP1914.B Deliver Year 2 of 3 of additional leader investment funding – value £4m 31 March 2020   

These works are currently ongoing and progressing ahead of the agreed programme 

NDP1914.C 
Undertake targeted structural patching of areas of carriageway where there concentrated amount 
of potholes - £1.08m 

31 March 2020   

All defect areas identified in conjunction with members and order placed with our Contractor to repair. Any remaining amount is being held for use over the 
remainder of the winter period. 

NDP1914.D Deliver Flood Resilience programme of High Risk flood sites - £500k 31 March 2020   

P
age 88



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Works currently ongoing and progressing to agreed programme. 40% complete. Noted reduction in surface water flooding complaints despite heavy rainfall during 
this quarter 

        

NDP1915 Capitalise on Rochdale’s registered housing providers investment monies available through the 
GM Mayoral Fund 

31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1915.A 
Work with registered housing providers to agree the build programme for delivery of both 
affordable and supported housing. 

31 March 2020   

GM Housing Fund investing £4m in Riverside Phase Two development. Other discussions ongoing. 

NDP1915.B 
Bring forward inner town Brownfield sites to provide community led housing for the most 
challenged communities and promote town centre development 

31 March 2020   

CLH scheme facilitation progressing well with community group receiving support from GM and third sector. 

NDP1915.C 
Engage with developers receiving HCA grant monies to ensure they are aware of opportunities in 
Rochdale 

30 September 2019   

Homes England funded pipeline is healthy with two large schemes going through planning process. 

        

NDP1916 Support the development and implementation of the GM Clean Air Plan to tackle nitrogen 
dioxide exceedances 

31 March 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1916.A 
Develop and deliver the clustered stakeholder engagement events with Rochdale, Oldham and 
Tameside taxi trade 

31 July 2019  

Completed. Cluster meeting took place on 13.2.19 in Oldham involving reps from Rochdale Oldham and Tameside taxi trade. Further follow up Rochdale trade 
briefing took place on 24.7.19. 

NDP1916.B Support TfGM with the development and delivery of other stakeholder engagement events 31 July 2019  

P
age 89



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  10  Of  10 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

2 Rochdale reps are on the GM working group which has been set up and meeting regularly to develop the stakeholder engagement strategy and actions. 

NDP1916.C 
Support TfGM with the development and delivery of the statutory consultation around the GM 
Clean Air Plan 

31 October 2019   

Statutory consultation is delayed due to lack of clarity from Government on funding and the criteria for assessment of GM CAP. Consultation now scheduled to start 
early July 2020 and run for 12 weeks. 

NDP1916.D 
Support TfGM in the production and submission of the Full Business Case for the GM Clean Air 
Plan 

31 December 2019   

Scheduled to be finalised after statutory consultation has been completed  

NDP1916.E 
Support TfGM with the location, commissioning and maintenance of a real-time monitoring 
station within the Borough 

31 March 2020   

Draft service level agreement has been finalised and is with all parties for signing/approval. 

        

NDP1917 Accelerated Housing Programme 30 November 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

NDP1917.A Commission consultant study to inform approach to delivering higher value housing 30 September 2019   

First draft of Accelerated Housing study with officers for comment. Workshops to be held in Jan 2020. 

NDP1917.B 
Promote at an agreed annual programme of sites for the development of higher value housing in 
order to widen housing choice and retain economically active households. 

30 November 2019   

Discussions with developers on high value Council sites ongoing 

 

P
age 90



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date of Meeting 20th February 2020
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December 2019) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2019-20

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3. In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 3 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green: Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple.

Appendix 2 provides information on the Q3 performance of Rochdale 
Development Agency.

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
to monitor the work that must be completed, to support achievement of the 
action. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress

Performance Overview

90% (10) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2019-20 are ongoing 
and due to be complete by action due date. One further action isn’t fully 
complete and the action due date has now passed. The chart below shows the 
overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of 
Quarter 3. 

The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber) 
relates to:

 Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets

Quarter 3 Summary

The borough's employment rate remains at 69% which is the 3rd lowest in 
Greater Manchater. The 'out of work benefit claimant count' saw a slight 
improvement in Q3 but is still the 3rd highest in Greater Manchester. Rochdale 
Riverside recruitment information sessions attracted nearly 300 residents and 
support has been provided to NEXT Retail Limited and Reel Cinemas.  

Page 92



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

Recruitment support was also provided to The Trade Centre UK which created 
over 100 new jobs and opened on Sandbrook Park.  The total number of jobs 
created in Q3 with Council/RDA support stands at 309.  

The planning permission for the Junction 19 link road was not issued and is 
now hoped to be issued in early 2020. The Council resolved to grant planning 
permission for new housing on the former Dunlop Mills site, Royle Road site.  

Good progress continues to be made on the Rochdale Riverside scheme.  
Marks & Spencer commenced fit out of their unit in November and the scheme 
is on target to open in April 2020. Discussions are ongoing with potential 
funders to review delivery options for the Riverside Phase 2 scheme. £4m of 
grant funding was secured from GMCA Housing Fund towards the Phase 2 
scheme with a planning application for remediation works on this site 
submitted. £250,000 of GMCA funding also secured to undertake an 
infrastructure study to advance the Northern Gateway employment site 
proposals. 
 
The Casey Group were appointed to undertake refurbishment works to 
relocate the Fire Service Museum into the Maclure Road fire station. Opening 
of the new museum is scheduled before end of 2020. The Rochdale outdoor 
market has been handed over to, and is being operated by, one of the existing 
traders and committee. The Smith Street paving scheme is on site and 
scheduled to complete before February 2020.  

A partnership funding agreement was signed with the Greater Manchester 
Stations Alliance – the first in Greater Manchester – and residential led 
masterplans are being prepared for land around several railway stations. The 
Alliance is also funding a housing capacity study along the Calder Valley rail 
line. Draft Heywood and Middleton Town Centre Masterplans will be 
presented to Members during Q4.

The Greater Manchester Skills and Employment new priorities are being 
shaped around the requirements of the Local Industrial Strategy. In Q3 
Rochdale Council contributed to the 'Inclusive Growth in GM 2020 and 
beyond' report, and will be meeting with the GMCA in January 2020 to seek a 
commitment to the report's recommendations being implemented and included 
in the Skills and Employment new priorities.

Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

Not applicable

Page 93



Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

None6.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Appendix 1 – Economy Directorate 
Plan 2019/20

Appendix 2 – RDA Performance 
Report

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 94



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 

E19001 Increase local employment 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19001.A 
Engage with people who are out of work to access employment through Employment Links and 
Working Well contracts. 

31 March 2020   

The borough's employment rate remains at 69% of the working age population, which is the 3rd lowest in GM. The 'out of work benefit claimant count' is currently 
5895 (4.3%) which has seen a slight improvement but is the 3rd highest in GM. This quarter Rochdale Riverside recruitment information sessions attracted 
nearly 300 residents and support has been provided to NEXT and Reel Cinema to date. Employment Links continues to perform strongly and attract extra resources 
for target groups. Working Well, the GM commissioned employment support schemes continue to improve but are still underperforming against targets.  Council 
support to the providers include: staff training, borough familiarisation, safeguarding advice and help to increase referrals. The borough’s out of work claimant rate 
has fallen slightly in December and the gap with the GM average narrowed. Rochdale has improved its relative position in GM and is now 7th, lower than Bolton. 
Manchester and Oldham. 

E19001.B 
Provide training for front line council and partner staff to offer first stage jobs and skills support in 
community venues 

31 March 2020   

Sixty eight local services have now been briefed on the skills and employment single access point and 217 referrals from residents, not accessing any employment 
or skills help, have been supported. Facebook has been identified as the best method of communicating information about new opportunities and therefore a 
Facebook group has been established with 132 members after 2 weeks of being set up. 

E19001.C Provide opportunities for learners to engage on courses 31 March 2020   

The Rochdale Talk English has been audited by Manchester City Council and NHCLG and passed all standards and compliance checks and named as an 'exemplar 
partner organisation' and our documentation is being used by other local authorities as best practice. As at Q3, 23 community venues are providing 35 courses with 
467 active learners. 

E19001.D Recruit and provide training and retraining for new and existing volunteers 31 March 2020   

The number of trained volunteers has increased to 67 this quarter. 

E19001.E 
Attract new businesses by completing development of new industrial units at Kingsway Business 
Park, Mossfield and Oldham Road units by 2021 

31 March 2020   

Planning permission is due for Oldham Road in early January 2020 and development will shortly commence on site. We are exploring the opportunity to bring 
forward a scheme at Mossfield and other locations within the Borough. 

P
age 95



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

        

E19002 Create new jobs and safeguard jobs 31 March 2020  

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19002.A Create new jobs through Business engagement / liaison with existing businesses 31 March 2020  

The total new jobs created as of Q3 is 309 against a full year target of 350. 

E19002.B Protect jobs which are at risk in local businesses through engagement liaison 31 March 2020  

Total Safeguarded jobs is now at 254 against a target of 250.  

        

E19003 Attract inward investment and support business growth 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19003.A 
Co-deliver a portfolio of target companies across the Borough for an Account Management 
strategy for Local Businesses through visits to businesses. 

31 March 2020  

58 company visits have taken place to date (18 in this quarter). This action is now complete. 

E19003.B 
Consult with 200 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver up to 4 
events per annum, one each quarter. 

31 March 2020   

A Christmas event took place in December 2019 with over 60 businesses in attendance 

E19003.C £30m of private sector investment generated by assisted projects 31 March 2020   

P
age 96



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

This is an annual target. A full update will be provided at year end/Q4. 

        

E19004 Promote and say yes to good development 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19004.A Consult on Publication Site Allocations Plan Document 31 October 2019   

As a result of delays in bringing forward the next version of the GMSF for consultation we are taking further advice as to the preparation of our Local Plan. 

E19004.B Issue planning permission for J19 link road scheme 31 December 2019   

It is hoped to conclude the s106 agreement in respect of the Junction 19 link road scheme and issue the planning permission in early 2020. 

E19004.C Submit Site Allocations Plan to PINS 31 March 2020   

As a result of delays in bringing forward the next version of the GMSF for consultation we are taking further advice as to the preparation of our Local Plan. 

E19004.D 
Engage private sector to bring forward brownfield land for housing across the Borough e.g. Akzo 
Nobel, British Vita, Carcraft, Langley sites 

31 March 2020   

 Countryside Properties are progressing well on former HMR sites. The Council resolved to Grant planning permission for new housing on the former Dunlop Mills 
site, Royle Road site with a planning permission to be issued in early 2020. The Council working with an interested developer on the British Vita site in East 
Middleton. We are also supporting landowners to bring forward several others sites for development. Homes England preparing new surveys and refreshed 
supporting evidence to support marketing of Akzo site and new planning application in 2020 and to dispose of the Carcraft site in Castleton for housing 
development. 

        

E19005 Create vibrant Town Centres. 31 March 2020   

        

P
age 97



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19005.A Produce annual action plan for Rochdale Town Centre Delivery Plan. 30 June 2019  

The action plan has now been agreed and will be updated every quarter - this has now been completed. 

E19005.B 
Launch Rochdale Town Centre Residential Strategy and Delivery mechanisms for CRP and RR 
Phase 2 

31 December 2019   

 Results of Town Centre traffic modelling is awaited before commissioning further work. Funding discussions taking place with GMCA and Homes England to look at 
how we can deliver the Riverside Phase 2 and Central Retail Park sites. £4m of GMCA funding was secured to support remediation work on Rochdale Riverside 
Phase 2 site and a planning application for the site works submitted in Q3. Discussions are taking place with interested developers and funders to bring forward an 
early phase of development on the Central Retail Park site. 

E19005.C Launch Rochdale Station Gateway Masterplan 31 December 2019   

A draft Masterplan completed in Q3 and a phasing/delivery plan is now being developed prior to bringing the plan to Members. The scheme is now subject to 
further testing with TfGM and transport operators. It is expected this will be consulted upon during 2020. During Q4 the Council became the first in GM to secure 
funding through a partnership with the GM Stations Alliance with Network Rail committed to putting land and resources into the plan. 

E19005.D Agree Town Centre Masterplans for Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough 31 December 2019   

Draft Heywood and Middleton Masterplans have been completed and these will be presented to Township Members during Q4. 

E19005.E Support developer to identify a viable scheme for Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 31 March 2020   

Agreed approach finalised in Q3 - Update and presentation to be presented to Cabinet due in February 2020. 

        

E19006 Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment. 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

P
age 98



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

E19006.A Consult on public realm designs for Town Hall Square 31 December 2019   

Work continues to try and agree scope of works at reduced budget for Town Hall Square. Meanwhile an additional capital programme bid has been submitted to 
increase the budget to aim to deliver the wider scheme. 

E19006.B Launch grant scheme for Heritage Action Zone 30 June 2019   

First two properties have secured grants on Drake Street, and South Parade - this work is ongoing 

E19006.C Prepare development brief for development of land around Tonge Hall 31 December 2019   

Meeting with academy executive to be held on 28th January 2020. 

E19006.D Implement agreed schedule of grant funded repair works to Hopwood Old Hall 31 March 2020   

The contract is nearing completion. 

E19006.E Develop long term strategy for re-use of Hopwood Old Hall 31 March 2020   

We are supporting Hopwood Depree with access issues and exploring options to secure a viable use of the Hall and surrounding land. 

E19006.F Work up HLF stage 2 bid for re-use and adaptation of Rochdale Town Hall 31 March 2020   

HLF visit took place in October to review progress on Town Hall project and check scheme is still within parameters of application and to provide advice in lieu of 
May 2020 deadline for completion of Development stage. The feedback was very positive and scheme is on track to secure full funding from mid-2020. Submission 
of detailed Stage 2 bid due May 2020. 

E19006.G 
Prepare the Castleton masterplan to support visitor and economic growth along the East 
Lancashire Railway between Heywood - Castleton 

31 December 2019   

 A draft Masterplan was presented to Ward Members and ELR in Q3 and a phasing/delivery plan is now being developed prior to bringing the plan to Members. 
TfGM has established a Project team to look at the potential to integrate the ELR connection with a tram - train scheme between Rochdale and Heywood. This will 
likely allow for shared expertise and resources. A partnership agreement was signed with the GM Stations Alliance to support the project with Network Rail 
agreeing to put land and resources into the project. It is hoped the Masterplan will support landowners to bring forward brownfield land for housing around the 
station, notably Smalley Street, Maltings Lane and Trub Farm. 

P
age 99



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

E19006.H 
Support the Environment Agency to deliver the River Roch Flood Alleviation Scheme in 
Littleborough. Adopt Supplementary Planning Document for College Bank/Lower Falinge 

31 December 2019   

The funding partnership agreement between the Council and the EA to support draw down of the funding for the whole EA project was signed in Q3. A planning 
application for the Phase 1 Littleborough flood scheme is to be submitted in Q4 and work progressing on phase 2. Work on Draft SPD has been put on hold whilst 
RBH appoint a developer partner to consider position and approach in respect of funding and Masterplan phasing. 

        

E19007 Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets. 31 December 2019   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19007.A 
Review options for the restructure of the management of the commercial and industrial estate to 
increase performance. 

31 August 2019   

Project team has been in place since 1st July and is dealing with a large number of legacy issues inherited by the team which have delayed progress on the main 
estates works. A bid for funding to carry out property repairs will be submitted in Q4 

E19007.B Review the operational efficiency of the Councils non-operational assets to increase performance 31 December 2019   

Review underway on a number of sector categories 

        

E19008 Maximise income for the Council. 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19008.A Review of 50 Council assets reviewed for potential disposal 31 March 2020   

On target to exceed objective 

E19008.B 
Deliver savings targets by strategic investment in property through the Commercial Investment 
Fund 

31 March 2020   

P
age 100



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

No suitable properties have been identified for acquisition in 2019/20. Whilst it remains a key objective to achieve the savings targets this must be balanced by 
prudence in the selection of appropriate investments in order to manage the exposure to financial risk. 

E19008.C Provide £100,000 income through the promotion of discretionary chargeable Planning services 31 March 2020   

Current pre-app fee income £53,470.25 as of Q3 with a number of others negotiated for schemes to be submitted in Q4. 

E19008.D Deliver Business Rates payable growth to secure additional £1m 31 March 2020   

This is an annual target and will be reported in Q4 

        

E19009 Capitalise on our investment in regional growth. 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19009.A Apply for and secure minimum £10m funding from GM for Rochdale Borough projects 31 March 2020   

£4m of funding was secured from the GM Housing Fund towards Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 in Q3. Over £150 of funding secured from GM Stations Alliance 
towards feasibility and master planning work at Rochdale and Castleton and support a housing capacity study along the Calder Valley line. 

E19009.B Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GMSF 31 October 2019   

Work on GMSF continues on preparing submission plan. Key focus is Systra Transport work and Three Dragons viability project. 

E19009.C Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM 2040 Delivery Plan 31 October 2019   

The GM 2040 Transport Strategy and Delivery Plan is to be refreshed during 2020 to align with more recent strategic work on Clean Air, GMSF, Streets for All, 
Walking and Cycling initiatives, bus reform and future tram - train extensions. As part of this work a Local District Delivery Plan of projects will be prepared to reflect 
Rochdale Borough issues and priorities. A Draft of this local transport plan will be brought before Members for consideration and approval. 

P
age 101



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

E19009.D Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM Local Industrial Strategy 31 December 2019   

Using £250k of GMCA funding, a project brief for an Infrastructure study to advance the Northern Gateway site has been prepared with consultants to be jointly 
appointed with Bury during Q4. Project Manager to lead the work being appointed. 

E19009.E 
Support GMCA in preparation of strategic plans and strategies:- GM Skills and Employment 
Strategy. 

31 March 2020   

The GM Skills and Employment new priorities are being shaped around the requirements of the Local Industrial Strategy. In Q3 Rochdale Council contributed to the 
'Inclusive Growth in GM 2020 and beyond' report, and will be meeting with the GMCA in January 2020 to seek a commitment to the report's recommendations 
being implemented and included in the Skills and Employment new priorities. 

E19009.F Form public / private partnerships to support delivery of development opportunities 31 March 2020   

The Council and GM Stations Alliance signed a partnership agreement, worth over £150k - the first in GM, to support regeneration and development around 
Rochdale and Castleton railway stations. Draft Masterplans are in place with a monthly Steering Group chaired by Councillor John Blundell. The Alliance will work to 
pool land and other resources, and work with private sector and funders, to bring forward development, primarily new housing, around railway stations. 

E19009.G Develop 10 year Growth Plan for the borough 31 December 2019   

Draft prepared and scheduled to go through local governance process during Q4. 

E19009.H 
Commission and complete a feasibility/plan for an Advanced Manufacturing Park for Northern 
Gateway 

31 March 2020   

Using £250k of GMCA funding, a project brief for an Infrastructure study to advance the Northern Gateway site has been prepared. RDA have advertised for a 
Project Manager to support feasibility work on the Advanced Manufacturing Park and wider Northern Gateway site. 

        

E19010 Deliver high quality and effective services. 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19010.A To determine planning applications to exceed national targets 31 March 2020   

P
age 102



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2019-20 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

On Track: Majors - national target 60% within 13 weeks – our figure 100% 
Minors – national target 65% within 8 weeks – our figure 95.45% 
Others – national target 80% within 8 weeks – our figure 94.23% 

E19010.B 
Redesign business processes and develop new performance measures in Development 
Management. 

31 October 2019   

Mondrem project progressing well. Customer feedback obtained (extremely positive). Staff engagement sessions completed which have been extremely helpful. 
Work now started on mapping current processes with the redesign phase to begin thereafter in March. 

E19010.C Successful launch of the revised Asset Strategy. 30 June 2019  

This has now been completed. 

        

E19011 Deliver more high value and aspirational housing 31 March 2020   

        

Ref. Name Due Status 

E19011.A Develop an aspirational housing strategy for the Borough 31 October 2019   

Draft Strategy completed in Q3. Developer workshops scheduled for 3/4th week in January to inform final draft. 

E19011.B Work with developers to obtain planning permission on sites for high value housing 31 March 2020   

On-going. Various permissions in place. Three major schemes in the pipeline specifically focused on larger higher value family homes for submission in Q1/Q2 2020 
(Durn, Soccer Village, and RFC). Two other small scale applications in the system (Hornesfeld and Bamford Hall for assessment) 

E19011.C 
Support implementation of the strategy by identifying a portfolio of Council assets to market for 
aspirational and high value housing 

31 March 2020   

Portfolio of sites to be identified through the High Value Housing Study. A separate Council owned site has been identified through developer interest and will be 
reported to Cabinet for decision in Q4. 

 

P
age 103



1

Rochdale Development Agency – Delivery Plan 2019-20

1. Business Development Team

Priority Work Area Action / Workstream    Lead Timing

A. B. Occupier Attraction

Lead Generation

Develop and deliver marketing campaigns to promote Rochdale to companies in target sectors.
 Website: 13 enquiries – forms completed and requesting call back (4 logic and 9 general Kingsway 

including Plot I and a D&B for 35 – 40k square feet  
 New website – just awaiting final changes 
 Logic eshot – 6903 emails delivered, 1504 of those opened, 51 of those clicked through 

AS


Mar 20

Enquiry Handling
Manage investment enquiries from businesses providing tailored advice and support.

 57 new enquires received and responded to during Q3 
 6 investment projects secured creating 231 new jobs and safeguarding 106 jobs

MM  Mar 20

Sector Development

Devise and develop projects in target sectors to strengthen the case for inward investment in Rochdale.
 Logistics: Support provided for Russells Group to attract occupiers to South Heywood and work 

ongoing with operators to assist their operations.
 Manufacturing: Strength in Places bid submitted for the AMI. Ongoing work taking place with local 

businesses and to prepare proposition with view for wide scale consultation and preparation of 
potential operating model. Discussions ongoing with MMU and Manchester University as potential 
project partners. Meetings also held with BAE Systems and with the National Robotics Network.

 Creative & Digital: ERDF bid for additional funding submitted with outcome of bid expected in late 
January 2020. Rochdale Ambassadors sector group continue to be held.

NE



Mar 20

Location Promotion

Develop projects to promote Rochdale as a business location locally, regionally and nationally.
 Internal meeting held with Communications Team following approval of funding for inward 

investment campaign. Follow up meetings plan to prepare brief and procurement strategy with 
intention of delivering work from March onwards.

 Ongoing attendance at business conferences and networking events to promote Rochdale in GM.

NE



C. D. Business Support

Account Management

Develop strategic relations with account managed businesses in target sectors Rochdale.
 25 account management visits to companies completed during Q1 (April – June)
 15 visits made in Q2.
 18 visits made in Q3

CH


Mar 20

P
age 104



2

Partner Services

Work with the Growth Company to promote their advice and support services in Rochdale.
 Review meetings held with Business Growth Hub and MIDAS in October 2019 to review activity in 

Rochdale
 RDA worked with MIDAS on a major manufacturing project led by DIT and Government for 

Northern Gateway in October and November which was well received but ultimately unsuccessful.

CN


Mar 20

Rochdale Ambassadors

Work with This is Rochdale to deliver local networking events and develop the #ThisisRochdale programme.
 Held board meeting 6th December  10 (+ 3 staff) board members attended
 Christmas event held for the ambassadors – around 60 in attendance 
 Discussions around an event under Dippy and the MACH trade show taking place
 Next ambassadors event to be held under Dippy on Thursday 27th February 2020

AS


May 20

Business Awards

Work with the Steering Group to deliver the annual Rochdale Business Awards.
 Launch event for 2019 awards held with 40 business people attending, including new contacts
 Entries closed on 27 September and judging will take place early October.
 Award ceremony held 8th November with 260 guests.
 9 categories (including the ‘ThisisRochdale’ one)

CH


Dec 20

P
age 105



3

2. Major Projects Team – Delivery Plan 2019-20

Key 
Priority 
no.

Work Area
Action / Workstream    Lead Timing 

A. Rochdale Riverside
Monitor and coordinate on-site construction activity to secure completion by Easter 2020, including 
monitoring compliance with the legal and planning requirements  

 The scheme is currently on target to open in Easter 2020 (ahead of scheduled opening)
 The planning application for revisions to the car park and other non-material amendments has 

been approved

GD/SP  Mar 20  

Work with Genr8 to confirm asset management and operational arrangements, secure further occupiers 
and monitor the financial cash flow  

 Asset management set up planning is on-going and asset managers will be appointed prior to the 
scheme opening 

 Detailed discussions are on-going with other potential new occupiers including food and 
beverage traders. Announcements are due to be made before the end of January

 The scheme cash flow continues to be monitored 

GD/SP  Mar 20

Rochdale Riverside
retail and leisure 
scheme 

Work with Genr8 to identify a viable scheme and confirm the delivery & funding options for Phase 2 of the 
scheme, including a programme to commence enabling works 

 Enabling works and remediation design is complete and a planning application has been 
submitted. Delivery options for the works are under review

 On-going discussions are taking place between Genr8 and RDA to review funding and delivery 
options for the main Phase 2 site. GMCA has agreed in principle to allocate £4million towards the 
scheme. 

DC/SP/
GD  Mar 20

B. Rochdale Town Centre
Rochdale Town 
Centre  action plan

Produce an annual Action Plan for the Rochdale Town Centre Delivery Plan
 The format and content of the Action Plan has now been agreed. The Action Plan will be updated 

every quarter.

GD/GM  Mar 20

Rochdale market Continue the on-going operational & financial management of the indoor & outdoor market, and conclude 
a review of the future management options   

 The last day of trading for the outdoor market and food hall is planned to be 14 October 2019
 The artisan market continues to operate on last Saturday of the month.
 The outdoor market has been handed over to, and is being operated by, one of the existing 

market traders and committee.
 Proposals for the new use of the market building are being reviewed with a number of options 

considered and a decision due in Q4.

LR  Mar 20  

P
age 106



4

The Walk / The Butts  
shop front 
improvement scheme

Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake a comprehensive shop front improvement scheme 

 Initial ideas for improvements to The Walk are being prepared. Surveyors will be appointed to 
carry out some initial surveys of the properties prior to agreeing a scheme   

GM  Mar 20

Butts Avenue 
improvement scheme  

Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake the agreed scheme   

 Detailed designs have been completed for the project, which incorporates the property 
improvements, public realm and lighting schemes. 

 Planning has been submitted for the installation of decorative screens on the avenue. 
 No tender submissions were returned, works to be retendered  
 Further consultation with adjoining businesses is underway. 

GM  Mar 20 

Smith Street paving 
scheme 

Complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to 
undertake the agreed scheme

 The Smith Street paving scheme is currently onsite and is being delivered by RBC Highways. The 
public realm and re-modelling of the steps elements of the scheme are on track to be completed 
before Dippy the Dinosaur arrives at Number One Riverside.

 The Smith Street/ Milton Street junction section of works are going to be picked up after Dippy. 

GM  Mar 20

Rochdale town centre 
mural festival 

Coordinate activity needed to secure delivery of festival including planning permission and building owner 
consents

 The Mural festival took place from 23rd-26th August and delivered 12 large scale murals together 
with and events programme

 Discussions about potential future murals or continuation of the festival are taking place. 

KK  Mar 20

South Parade  
improvement scheme

Complete design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents and procure a contractor to undertake a 
property frontage & block improvement scheme along with improved paving

 Professional team appointed for the design and delivery of the scheme (Conservation Accredited 
Architects).

 Historic research and initial design work complete, consultation with property owners taking 
place, submission of planning and start of tender process in February 2020 with implementation 
programmes for May to September 2020.

 Paving scheme complete, except for reinstatement of paving subject to ENW works.

KK/NB  Dec 20

Bell Street  
improvement scheme 

Secure a licence with the owners, complete the design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents 
and procure a contractor to undertake an environmental improvement scheme 

 The lease has been agreed with the site owners and scheme designs are complete 
 A simple landscaping improvement scheme will be implemented as part of the Rochdale 

Riverside contract.
 Tendering took place in December and a contractor is to be appointed in January. The scheme 

will be delivered by Easter 2020 (subject to weather) 

KK  Mar 
2020

P
age 107



5

Drake Street strategy  Coordinate implementation of the Drake Street strategy in accordance with the approved  Delivery Plan 
and Action Plan to secure  the reuse of vacant properties & sites and the completion of identified 
improvement schemes  

 A number of residential schemes are complete or are nearing completion, including 1 Drake 
Street and 19-21 Church Lane

 Work with partners on-going to bring forward a development for the former Iveson’s site
 Agreed purchase of key Drake Street property fallen through. Engaging with owner and 

considering options.
 Ongoing enagement with property owners and market, whilst developing HAZ schemes.

NB  Mar 20

Heritage Action Zone Implementation of the Heritage Action Zone delivery plan and PSiCA grants to secure the repair and reuse 
of heritage assets

 Manchester School of Architecture’s exhibition was in N1R from June to August 
 The PSiCA historic building repair grant scheme has been approved by Historic England and 

officially launched
 Delivery of the first year PSiCA scheme (eligible properties 7 South Parade to 12 Drake Street, 

Deaf and Dumb Institute)
 Engaging with the owners of PSiCA year 2-4 target and reserve properties
 Continued engagement and research programme in collaboration with Historic England
 Launch of the Co-operative Enterprise HUB in 14 Drake Street in Feb 2020
 Heritage Schools projects in collaboration with Historic England and Manchester School of 

Architecture.

KK  Mar 20

C. Heritage assets
Coordinate work needed to progress the HLF development stage submission in mid-2020 to secure a 
Round 2 award in autumn 2020

 Full consultant team appointed. Monthly co-ordination meetings with full team and robust 
reporting process established with risk management process

 RIBA Stage 2 designs now completed for all 3 Phases and costs now being evaluated. Major 
gateway of mid-point review due in October with NLHF trustees

 Accurate scale drawings and elevations of the building are now available for the first time.
 Gateway review of mid-point held in October which NLHF confirmed we passed, now working 

towards full submission in May 2020. 


EB/JH/ER  Mar 20Rochdale Town Hall 

Confirm programme and coordinate procurement and implementation of the Phase 1  improvement 
works to the building including the decant arrangements for late 2020

 Definition of Phase 1 works is complete. Opening up works undertaken in August and design 
team able to refine scope and understand construction and condition far better 

 The decant of the building is being managed by the RBC Estates Team with options being 

EB/JH/ER  Mar 20

P
age 108



6

evaluated for the relocation of current services. Monthly group established.
 Decant of the building is progressing and options for the relocation of Registrars and the Music 

Service have been identified but not yet confirmed and are going to informal cabinet in February.
 Further opening up works planned for January 2020 and various workshops to be held regarding 

areas such as the roof and windows which will inform the final programme and cost plan.
Town Hall Square 
public realm

Progress the design  to transform the square including  public consultation and confirm the delivery 
programme

 RIBA Stage 2 designs being worked up in tandem with town hall scheme to ensure access, 
counter-terrorism measures co-ordinated

 Scope of project under review due to complex issues and budget constraints. 
 TH Board confirmed their desire to progress with the full scheme and a consents strategy for 

closure of the highway has been confirmed with Planning and Highways.
 Gillespie’s will now progress with RIBA 3 on this basis and the contract and final costs can be 

agreed. 

JH/ER  Mar 20

Complete land transfer, prepare development brief, secure planning permission, market the development 
opportunity and secure capital receipt

 Change in Executive Management at Academy Trust has led to review of land transfer 
agreement, working with new Academy Trust Chief Executive and professional to progress 
agreement.

 Development brief, planning permission and marketing to take place after land transfer. 

NB Mar 20Tonge Hall

Prepare brief for repair works to building and delivery programme in dialogue with Historic England
 Brief for repair work to be prepared. 

NB Mar 20

Coordinate implementation of the delivery phase, following the Stage 2 HLF approval, to secure a start on 
site in October 2019

 Design team have completed RIBA Stage 4 process and the tenders were issued in July
 Currently working with museum team to develop the exhibition and interpretative design. Some 

testing of ideas at recent Heritage Open Days with some further community input
 Casey Group appointed as main contractor with a start on site in January 2020
 Museum and office fit out packages to follow with opening scheduled for end 2020.

JH  Sep 19Rochdale Fire Service 
Museum

Confirm proposals for the adaptation, fit out and use of the first floor of the building and agree the 
implementation programme, operational arrangements and funding

 Tenders returned and being assessed. Large asbestos removal cost
 ERDF stage 1 bid approved with final bid to be submitted mid-November for c£800k additional 

funding towards wider site to maximise council match funding and to create digital creative 
workplaces

 Continued discussions around operation and marketing of project under development.   
 Planning application for change of use to office to be determined January 2020

JH/NE  Mar 20

P
age 109



7

Complete emergency repair works needed to protect features of significance and continue regular 
inspections in discussion with Historic England 

 Emergency works due to complete in February 2020.
 Discussions with Historic England regarding potential funding for additional works.

NB  Dec 19Hopwood Hall

Work with Hopwood DePree and Historic England to prepare a deliverable strategy and programme for 
the repair, restoration and re-use of the building including a review of the existing option agreement 

 Preparation of strategy & programme and review of option agreement is on-going
 Development of strategy to include synergies with tourism major opportunity within the locality.

NB March 
20

Heritage Strategy Work with RBC Planning and partners to undertake a review of heritage projects and assets and prepare a 
Heritage Strategy/Heritage Opportunities document

 Initial draft prepared and to be progressed in 2020.

KK/EB  Dec 20

Middleton Town 
centre

Complete the paving and shop front improvement scheme and secure financial closure  
 Shopfront works completed and financial closure on-going.

NB/KK  Jan 
2020 

D.  Masterplans / Town Centres
Business rates 
reduction & shop 
front scheme

Identify, promote and implement Business Rates relief scheme and the shopfront & start up grant scheme 
to secure the re-occupation of vacant properties in the town centres (Rochdale, Heywood & Middleton)

 Re-advertising of the scheme will take place via an online campaign
 New businesses across the town centres continue to take advantage of the two schemes.

GM  Mar 20

Highway Movement 
Framework 

Complete the review and secure approval of the revised  Highway Movement Framework for Rochdale 
town centre 

 Review is underway, including traffic modelling and initial workshop sessions. 

AM  Mar 20

Heywood town 
centre masterplan 

Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core functions of the 
town centre and support investment and development proposals.

 Masterplan is currently 90% complete. Meeting 10/01/20 to finalise streets for all aspect with 
Broadway Malyan and RBC Highways.

AM/PM  Mar 20

Middleton town 
centre masterplan

Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core functions of the 
town centre and support investment and development proposals

 Middleton masterplan refresh has begun. Presentation being produced for Middleton Township 
Group to provide update on work that has been completed to date on 22/01/20.

AM/PM  Mar 20

Littleborough
masterplan 

Development of a high level masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the town centre and 
support investment and development proposals

 Development area has been defined and opportunities identified. Broadway Malyan to produce 
the final masterplan.

AM/PM  Mar 20

P
age 110



8

Development of a high level masterplan for Castleton to identify residential opportunities and other 
regeneration potential, and to support visitor and economic growth along the East Lancashire Railway 
between Heywood & Castleton

 Consultants appointed and workshops taken place.
 New ELR Trust Officer appointed, led by RBC, to assist delivery of ELR 2030 objectives including 

Castleton & Heywood projects

NB/MR  Mar 20

Undertake review of the Network Rail approved Castleton extension feasibility study when completed and 
define and agreed scope of future project   

 Network Rail appointed to carry out feasibility study which is now complete.  This will be fed into 
Castleton Masterplan process.

NB/MR Dec 19

Castleton masterplan 
and East Lancashire 
Railway

Undertake review of the Heywood engine shed feasibility study when completed and define and agreed 
scope of future project   

 Feasibility Study completed, project not viable. ELR investigating smaller scale project.
 RDA Project Team now looking at delivery of small units for this land instead

NB/MR  Dec 19

Station Gateway / 
Milkstone Road 
masterplan 

The development of a masterplan and associated work programme of physical improvements to create a 
more attractive retail and living environment and to secure additional private investment

 Masterplan work by external consultants has been commissioned and two stakeholder 
workshops have taken place.  

 The preferred masterplan and delivery strategy is currently being developed/finalised.  

GM/MR  Mar 20

Rochdale Town 
Centre Residential 
Masterplan

Development of a strategy for Rochdale town centre to create the market conditions to deliver new 
residential units within the town centre and bring forward a viable package of sites,  including Central 
Retail Park 

 Progressing sties for town centre residential including Central Retail park and RR Phase 2 

GM/MR Mar 20

P
age 111



9

3. Business Parks and Development

Key 
Priority 
No

Work Area
Action   Lead Timing

A. To promote and improve a portfolio of competitive, high quality Business Parks and Industrial Estates including (but not limited to):  

Work with Partners and Rochdale Council to progress the Junction 19 Link Road Scheme to enable a 
start on site in early 2020/21    

RD / SP 

Work with Rochdale Council and partners to complete a main contractor procurement process, including 
appointment of a contractor.

 13 expressions of interest received
 8 companies selected to take forward to the Invitation to Tender stage, which is due to 

commence in January 2020.   

RD  Mar 20

Secure agreement of the heads of terms for the development agreement between Rochdale Council and 
the developer for the delivery of the Junction 19 Link Road 

 Russell Homes have agreed to the draft Heads of Terms, which will now be worked up into a 
Development Agreement    

RD / SP  Dec 19

Complete the development agreement between Rochdale Council and the developer for the delivery of 
the Junction 19 Link Road 

 Work on the Development Agreement is due to commence in January 2020.

RD / SP  Mar 20

Work with Rochdale Council and partners to secure Growth Deal Funding from the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (through their agent TfGM) including approval of a Full Business Case 

 Work is ongoing on the preparation of the Business Case with target date for submission to TfGM 
of early 2020

 First draft submitted to TfGM in November for “Critical Friend” review. 

RD / AM  Dec 19

South Heywood 
Employment Area / 
Junction 19 Link Road

Achieve a construction start on site 
 Work is currently targeted to commence in summer 2020.

RD / AM  Mar 20

Work to deliver development across the Business Park in accordance with the overall Strategic 
Objectives of the Kingsway Partnership   

RD / AM 

Work with Wilson Bowden and contractors to secure construction completion of the Logic small unit 
development at Plot D 

 Practical completion achieved in June 2019, snagging works ongoing.  

RD / SP  Jun 19

Kingsway Business 
Park 

Work with commercial letting agents to secure tenants for 50% of the Logic development 
 KPI Industries and Commercial Blinds now occupying 3 units
 Legal terms are being discussed on 1 further unit, with strong interest in another unit which 

RD / SP  Mar 19

P
age 112



10

RDA Performance Indicators 2019-20

would take the occupancy to over 50%. 

Work with Wilson Bowden Developments to agree a commercially acceptable funding package and 
progress development of a medium unit scheme on Plot G

 Ongoing discussion concerning Stamp Duty, Procurement and financial matters with WBD, with 
further legal advice secured in late Q3 which gives a solution to the stamp duty and 
procurement issues. 

 Negotiations to recommence with WBD in early 2020. 

SP / DC  Dec 19 

Work with Transport for Greater Manchester and Kingsway Businesses to secure the continuation of the 
Kingsway Link bus service for 2019/20 and beyond.

 Extensive transport related discussions ongoing with Transport for Greater Manchester, ASDA / 
Wincanton and JD Sports concerning the Kingsway Link Bus  

 Meeting held with commercial bus operator looking at feasibility of ‘works bus’ style service for 
Kingsway.

RD / AM  Dec 19

Work with Canmoor and other landowners and occupiers to secure and enhance the economic 
attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial Estate 

RD / AM

Work with Rochdale Council to secure completion of a Traffic Regulation Order to introduce on-street 
parking restrictions

 Traffic Regulation Order approved in July.

RD  Sep 19

Work with Rochdale Council to secure the installation of on-street parking restrictions 
 Double yellow lines implemented in September. 

RD / AM  Dec 19

Work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to secure the implement and operation of a CCTV system 
across the Estate

 CCTV cameras now installed on lampposts. Ongoing work to secure installation of relay units to 
bounce signal back to GMP Control Room. 

RD / AM  Sep 19

Working with Canmoor, organise a further occupier’s breakfast event.
 Three tenant meetings (including two business breakfasts) have been held this financial year so 

far.  

RD / AM  Dec 19

Stakehill Industrial 
Estate

As part of a Steering Group, work with specialist consultants to Investigate the feasibility of a Business 
Improvement District covering Stakehill Industrial Estate.

 Feasibility Report prepared by BID specialists, Partnerships for Better Business
 At an open meeting in November, Businesses across the estate agreed to take forward the BID 

Process to the next stage.      

RD /  AM  Mar 20

P
age 113



11

Key

 Achieved 

 Progress on track to achieving target

 Steady progress with minor risk of potential 
delays

 High Risk of project not being achieved

 Not Achieved

Performance Indicators RDA Annual 
Target Q3 Cumulative Commentary

Number of successful investment projects receiving RDA assistance 30 6 12 

Number of jobs safeguarded by RDA assisted companies 250 106 254 

Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted companies or projects 350 231 309 

Total level of property investment secured (£) £30,000,000 18,700,000 25,300,000 

Amount of commercial floor space built with RDA support (sq. ft.) 300,000 118,000 181,000 P
age 114



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2019/2020

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc. that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this 
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in 
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an 
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues 
can be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 115

Agenda Item 9



20th June 2019

18th September 2019

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership 
Update

Performance management and 
monitoring

RBH Housing Stock Scrutiny of RBH performance
Climatic Issue (Director of Neighbourhoods 
to report)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale and Middleton Town Centre 
Management

Scrutiny of Performance and 
proposals 

21st November 2019

Work Programme Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
‘Dippy the Dinosaur’ presentation on 
proposals for Rochdale’s hosting of Dippy in 
2020

Presentation/update

Housing Allocations Scrutiny of proposals

Community Safety – update Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Updates – 1st and 2nd 
Quarter Reports 2018/19

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring

20th February 2020

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/2019

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2017/18

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates – 4th Quarter 
Reports 2017/18

 Neighbourhoods Directorate
 Economy Directorate (incorporating 

RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Greater Manchester Energy Company – 
possible study group
Place Base presentation
GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information/discussion

Page 116



Directorate Plan Updates – 3rd Quarter 
2018/19
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Housing Allocations Scrutiny of proposals
Climate Proposals Scrutiny of proposals
Rochdale Market Scrutiny of proposals

Page 117



Document is Restricted

Page 118

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Homelessness and Housing Allocations Business Transformation Project
	6 Response to Climate Emergency Motion
	CURRENT FINAL DRAFT  December 2019 - Climate change strategy

	7 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update

	8 Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Economy Directorate Plans 2019-20: Quarter 3 Performance Update

	9 Work Programme 2019/2020
	11 Rochdale Market

